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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITEI)
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BA 7

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332 E mai

Phone: 033 -22385 l02l +9 1 983 0077000'

DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

Dear Members,

ort of the business and operations of your

the Audited Financial Statements and the

nancial year ending 31" March, 2022' The

its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever

required.

COVID-19ImPact

At Swati, as we continue in our endeavour to fight waves of the covlD-I9 Pandemic, our

priority remains the safety and well-being of our Employees'

Considering employee safety aS paramount, we implemented elaborate support measures for

employees during the three COVID-19 waves in lndia'

At the onset of the pandemic at2020,to ensure employee safety, we were able to transition 99%

of employees to a work from home arrangement'

Amid these transitions and pandemic-related uncertainties, the well-being of our ernployees has

become a critical focal Point.

At Swati, even amid an unprecedented global crisis, we continue to balance success as a business

with exemplary governancb and responsiveness to needs of all our Stakeholders'

KOLKNA.l
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tr'inancial Results

The summarized financial results for the year ending 31't March, 2021 ate as under:

Financial Highlights 
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

As at March 31, AsatM arch 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021

92,98,2'1.6 95,08,448 L,o3,63,063 85,08,M8
Revenue from oPerations

Other Income, net 895

Total Income 92,98,216 85,08,448 L,03,63,958 95,08,448

Less:Expenditure
Employee Benefits
Expenses

9,70,781 7,29,796 72,70,88L 7,29,796

Depreciation 3,40,606

Other Expenses 15,65,71,4 6,88,75"1 23,29,025 6,88,751

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 67,6L,727 70,89,90L 64,23,446 70,89,901

Income Tax L8,04,078 t7,84,386 L8,04,078 L7,84,386

Deferred Tax

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 49,57,643 53,05,5L5 46,19,368 53,05,515

Performance Review

Duringthe fiscal year ending 3l't March, 2022,Gross revenue grew by 9'28% and Profit after

tax is Rs. 49.5g Lakhs for tlie year Fy 202r-2022 compared to a profit of Rs. 53.05 Lakhs fbr

the previous Year.

State of ComPanY's Affairs

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of India, in terms of Section 45-lA of

Reserve Bank of India Actl rg34 andis carrying on NBFC activity of the business of Investment

in Shares & Securities and Inter-corpo rate & Personal Loan. The company is non-Deposit

taking NBFC ComPanY.

Change in the nature of business

There are no changes in the nature of business of the company during the year under review'
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Share Capital

The Company,s Paid-up Share Capital as on 3l't March,2022'was Rs. 10.10 Crores.

performance & financial position of subsidiary comprlny (ies), Associates and Joint

Ventures

The company have one subsidiary companies - Radhashree Roadsters Pvt. Lfd.

Financial Highlights of Radhashree Roadsters Pvt' Ltd'
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at March 3L,

2022 2021,

Revenue from oPerations 10,64.,847 5,20,587

Other Income, net 895 ) 11?

Total lncome L0,65,742 5,22,694

Less: Expenditure
Employee Benefits ExPenser 3,00,100 3,05,744

Depreciation 3,40,606 3,48,912

Other Expenses 7,6i\,311 5,52,296

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (3,38,275) (6,84,258)

Income Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (3,38,275\ (6,48,258)

Performance Review of Subsidiary Company

During the fiscal year ending 3l't March, 2022, Gross revenue grew by 103.89 o/o and Loss after

tax is Rs. 3.38 Lakhs for thJ year FY 202l-2022 compared to a Loss of Rs' 6'48 Lakhs for the

previous year.
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Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the Financial Position of the

Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial

statements relate and the date of the report.

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the

company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial

statements relate and the date of this Report'

Transfer to Reserve

During the financial year the Company has transferred Rs. 9,91,529.00 to Statutory Reserves in

terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Dividend

The company has not made any provision for payment of dividend for the year under

consideration.

Internal Financial Controls

your Company has in place an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of

its operations. The internal control system comprising of policies and procedures is designed to

ensure sound management of your Company's operations, safekeeping of its assets, optimal

utilisation of resources, reliability of its financial information and compliance' Clearly defined

roles and responsibilities have been institutionalised. Systems and procedures are periodically

reviewed to keep pace with the growing size and complexity of your Company's operations'

During the financi al year under review, no material or serious observation has been received

from Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on such controls'

Particulars of loans, guarantee or investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the Provisions of Section 186 of the

Companies Act,2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements'

I
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ParticularsofRelatedPartyTransactionaspersec.l88(1)

All the related party transactions are entered on arm's length basis and are in compliance with

the applicable provisions of the Act. There are no materially significant related party transactions

made by the company with any of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated

persons which have potential conflict of interest of the company at large' All related party

transactions as .equi.ed under the provisions of Companies Act, 2073 are provided in FORM -

AOC 2 as Annexure II to this rePort'

Deposits

The company did not accept any deposits during FY 2021-2022' falling within the purview of

section 73 of the Companies Act,2013'

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance' Board'

Committees and Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act' 2013'

In a separate meeting of IndependentDirectors held on 3l't January,2022petformance of Non-

Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the chairman

was evaluated, considering the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors'

The Board in their meeting held on 3l't January,2022 took note of the Performance evaluation

carried out by rndependent Directors and also evaluated the performance of lndependent

Directors,excludingthelndependentDirectorsbeingevaluated.

Board and Committees

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company's performance and

strategies. During the financial year under review, the Boartl met l0 (Ten) times' The dates on

which the meeting of the board was held during the year are as follows:

Kh#
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The Company does not pay any sitting fees or remuneration to Non-executive Director and

Independent Director during the FY 2021-2022.

All necessary information which is required to be placed before the board as stipulated in

Companies Act, 2013 & rules made thereunder has been placed before the board for its review

and consideration.

Audit Committee

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal controls put

in place to ensure that the accounts of your Company are properly maintained and that the

accounting transactions are in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations. In conducting

such reviews, the Committee found no material discrepancy or weakness in the internal control

system of your Company. The Committee has also reviewed the procedures laid down by your

Company for assessing and managing the risks.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times to deliberate on

various matters and the gap between any two Meeting was not more than 120 (One Hundred

Twenty) days. The required quorum was present in all the Meetings.

During the financial year under review,. Audit Committee Meeting was held on 21" June,202l,

30,h July, 2021,}th November, 2021,29th Jantary,2022 and 31" January, 2022.

sl.
No.

Date of
Meeting

Board No. Of
Directors

Sl. No. Date of
Meeting

Board No. Of
Directors

I 2t.06.2021 5 6 08.1 1.2021 5

2 30.07.2021 5 7 t2.11.202r 5

3 27.08.202r 5 8 15.0r.2022 5

4 t1.10.2021 5 9 29.0r.2022 6

5 2t.r0.2021 5 10 3t.01.2022 6



Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The committee comprises of 3 (Three) Members out of which 2 (Two) are lndependent

Directors and 1 (One) is Director'

During the financial year under review, the Committee met once on l5th January'2022 and all

the members were Present'

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

As required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges' the

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as Annexure III to this report'

Declaration by Independent Directors

each Independent Director under Section

the criteria of lndependence laid down in

declaration of Independent Directors is

enclosed with this RePort.

The Company has received necessary declaration from

l4g(7)of the Companies Act,2013' that he/she meets

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act' 2013' The

The composition, attendance and sitting fees paid are as follows:

Sittine Fees PaidNo. of teeting held during theDesignationName of

Members

Sri. Rishi KaPoor

Managing
Director
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Details of Directors/KMP who have appointed or resigned during the year

Sri Amit Lal was appointed as Additional lndependent Director in Board Meeting held on 15'''

January, 2022 andregularize as an Additional Independent Director to lndependent Director of

the Company in the Extra-ordirrary General Meeting held on 25''' April, 2022'

Sri Anurag Daga retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and, being eligible, seeks

reappointment; based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of the nomination and

remuneration committee, the Board recommends his reappointrnent.

Details of commission received by MD or wrD of the company during the financial year

re7(r4).

During the financial year, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons (KMP) has received

any commission from the ComPanY.

Key Managerial Personnel

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read with Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of ManagerialPersonnel) Rules, 2014, Sri Shashi Kumar, Chief

Financial ofhcer (cFo) and Sri Ravi Todi, company Secretary (cS), are the Key Managerial

Personnel of the ComPanY.

Extracts of Annual Return for the financial year as per Section 92(3), MGT-9

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(l) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9

as a part of the Annual Report Annexure I'

A copy of the Annual Return will be hosted on tbe website of the company as

http s ://www. swatiproj ects' com.

Details regarding conservation of er€f$]r technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings

and outgo

Information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the companies Act' 2013 read with rule 8 of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company'

r<
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Details of Vigil Mechanism

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (9) & ( I 0) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the

companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, the company has formulated a vigil

mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns.

Corporate Governance

your Company believes Corporate Governance is at the core of shareholder satisfaction. Your

Company,s governance practices are described separately in this Annual Report. Your Company

has obtained a certification from M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, on our

compliance with Listing Agreement read with SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with Indian Stock Exchanges. This certificate is attached to the

Report on CorPorate Governance.

Auditors
a) Statutory Auditors:

M/s. M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 3l9l4lE &

Membership No. 054366), Statutory Auditors of the Company, holds office till the

conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment'

They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment' if

made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not

disqualified for re-aPPointment'

b) Secretarial Auditor:

pursuant to the requirements of Section 204(l) of the Act read with Rule 9 of Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Rules' 2014' the Company

tra,.appointed Dipti Damani' 4 retary (CoP No. 20083 &

Membership No. 53996) to cond for the financial year under

review.

for the financial year under review, as

Company SecretarY, is attached as

Annexure IV of the Board's RePort'

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3

received from Dipti Damani, a practicing
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c) Internal Auditor:

pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)

Rule, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. As;hwani Gupta & Co', Chartered

Accountants (Firm Reg. No.003386N & Membershipr No. 082127), as lnternal Auditor

of the ComPanY.

Audit Observations

Auditors, observations are suitable explained in notes to the Accounts and are self-explanatory.

Auditors'Report

The Auditor,s of the Company has not made any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or

disclaimer in his Audit Report for the relevant financial year.

Reporting of Frauds bY Auditors

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors and lnternal Auditors nor the

Secretarial Auditors has reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the

Companies Act,2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Cornpany by its officers or

employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board's Report'

Corporate Social ResPonsibilitY

pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read wit;h the companies (corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 20!4,the corporate Social Responsibility (csR) is not applicable

to the ComPanY.
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Particular of EmPloYees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details, as required under Section 197(12) o1'the

Act, read with Rule 5(l) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 201 4.

i. Remuneration paid to Managing Director:

1. Sri Shreegopal Daga - Rs' 2,46,000'00 p'a'

ii. Remuneration paid to Other Directors is NIL

iii. Remuneration Paid to KMP:

1. Sri Ravi Todi, Company Secretary - Rs' 4'40'000'00 p'a'

2'SriShashiKumat,ChiefFinancialofficer_2,94,,,781.00p.a.

iv. The number of permanent employees on the payroll of the company is NIL'

v. The average increase of remuneration of employees is normal'

vi. The variation in the market capitalization is nil. As there is no change in tnarl<et quotation

of shares of the company during the year, as no trade in shares took place'

vii. The remuneration has been paid as per remuneration policy of the Company'

viii. No employee of the company employed throughout / part of the .financial 
year was

paid monthly salary n",or.ihun Rs. 5 Lakh per month or Rs' 60 Lakhs in aggregate'

Disclosure about Cost Audit

cost Audit and maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the company'

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

TheCompanyisinadherenceofapplicableSecretarialStanclards.
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Directors Responsibility Statements

pursuant to Section 134(5) of the companies Act,2013 Director of your company hereby state

and confirm that: -

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 3l't March 2022' the

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanatiorr

relating to material dePartures;

b. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them cons.istently and made

judgments and estimates that ar. ,Juronuble and piudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company atthe en,d of financial year and of the profit

of the ComPanY for the same Period;

c. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisio'flS of the Companies Act' 2013 fbr

safeguardi-ng the assets of the Company und fot llreventi'g and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;

d.Theyhavepreparedtheannualaccountsonagoingconcernbasis;

e. They have laid down internal financial controls in the company that are adequate are

were operatin g effecti velY ;

f. They have devised proper systems to ensure cornpliance with the provisions of all

appllcable laws and these are adequate and are operating effectively'

Statutory Disclosure

None of the Directors of your company are disqualified as per provisions of Section 164(2) of

the Companies Act, 2013.
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Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act' 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a

policy on prevention, prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in line

witt ihe provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition

and Redrissal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The Policy aims to promote a healthy

work environment and to provide protection to employees at the workplace and redress

complaints of sexual harassment and related matters thereto.

Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators

During the financi al year there were no orders from regulators or courts affecting the going

concern of the company. There were no disputes/appeals with various statutory authorities

impacting the financial position of the company'

Acknowledgements and Appreciation

your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, employees, lender and

bankers for their consistent support and encouragement to the Company' We are sure you will
join our directors in conveying ou. sincere appreciation to stakeholder of the Company and

issociates for their hard work and commitment. Their dedication and competence have ensured

that the Company will be a significant player in Business'

By Order of the Board of DirectoPlace: Kolkata
Date: 30th May,2022 For and on behalf of Swati

Managing Director
DIN:00397379

Rishi Kapoor
Independent Director
DIN:08422654

Independent Director
DIN: 09469579

Anurag Daga
Director
DIN:05239623

KOLKNAJ
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Company Registration Details

The company is registered in the State of west Bengal, India. The corporate Identity Number

(CIN) ailotted to- the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is

L65993WB 1 983PLC03 6332.

Maintenance of Shares

The Company's Registrat & Transfer

their registered office at 3A., Auckland
Asent is M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited having

Place. 7th Floor, Room No. 7A &' 7B., Kolkata - 700 017'

Annual Report

The Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Director's Report, Auditor's

Report and other important inlormation is circulated to members and other entitled thereto'

Listing on Stock Exchange

The company's Shares are listed on calcutta Stock Exchange of lndia Limited (cSE) and

Metropoliian Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI)'

Payment of Listing Fees & Depository F ees

Annual Listing Fees for the year 2o2r-22 was paid on 1Oth May,202l to the Metropolitan Stock

Exchange of India Grasprl and g,h Jury,202rio the calcutta Stock Exchange of India Limited

(csE).

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2021-22 was paid on 1Otn May, 2021by the Company to

National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and central Depository Services (lndia)

Limited (CDSL).
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SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system by

Securities Exchange Board of India for debt listing. The salient features of this system are

centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by

concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its

current status. Till the date of the report the status of the investor compliance is NIL.

Green Initiative

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had taken the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by

allowing paperless compliances by Companies through electronic mode.

Your Company supports the Green Initiative and has accordingly decided to send all

communications to its shareholders to their respective registered E-rnail addresses.

Your Company appeals to you, its shareholders, who are yet to register your E-mail addresses that

they take necessary steps for registering same so that you can also become a part of the initiative and

contribute towards a greener environment.

Distribution of Equity Shares

Distribution of Holdings Q'Jo. of Shares)

Sl. No. No. of Shares No. of Holders "h To Total Total Shares %o of Total
1-s00 s56 49.9551 1,17 ,360 1.1620

2. s01 - 1000 533 47.8886 3,70,920 3.672s

a
J. r00l - s000 0.2695 6,000 0.0594

4. 5001 - 10000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

5. r0001 - 50000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

6. 50001 - 100000
a
J 0.2695 2,20,080 2.t790

7. 100001 - And Above l8 |.6173 93,85,640 92.9271

TOTAL 1.113 100.0000 1,01,00,000 100.0000
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Annexure I

Form No.MGT-9

EXrRAcr oF ANNUAL REruRl[ 
if^?tfr:f,il-ANclAL 

YEAR ENDED oN

fPursuant to section 92(3\ o-f the Companies Act' il-0]3 and rule l2(l) o'f the

Co*po,i,,(M*og,*unto,dAd*ini't,otion)Rules'20]4]

I. |[). S:

I CIN L65993W8 1 983PL C03 6332

Registiation Oate

Narne-of tiie CornPanY

Category/SLr b-Clategoly o I thc Com pany

Acldress o1'the Registered o{'1ice and cotrtact

deta ils

Whether listed comPanY

Narne, Adclress atrcl Contetct cletails of

Registrar ancl Tralrsf-er Ageut, if any

rvr7r. siruiieioje.is t-imited ;

Company limited by Shares / Non-govt'

Compa.ny

1688, Jamunalal Bajaj Street,

Kolkata - 700007

I Yes
:

; Calclrtta Stocl< Bxchangc (CSl:)

j Metropolitan Stocl< [:,xcharlge (MSL'l)

i Ni.tl""r..hnologiei P"t. aid: 
- 

'l

3,A, Ar-rckland PLace, 7'l' Floor-

' Room No. 7A 8.8.8, Kolkata-700017
i Phon., 033-2235727 01127 I

Emai I : n ichetech p I (g)n ichetechp l'cont
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Reg. Address: 168 BA
CIN: L65993WB1 mar

Phone:033-22385 00,

rr. BBuigIRA- -Qa\Lr-$LX

Ail the business activities contributing r 0% or more of the t.tar turrrovcr of the compary shall

be stated:-

Sr.

No.

Nu^. and DescriPtion of

main products/ services

,l\iL'"cno. oi'tt'r.

,Product/ service

('
',oh to total tr:rnover o f' the

0onlpany

"*..".-","l 
i NBFC - Non Deposits Taking

: Providing Loans
,_ "_ ,;...

AAOlvatL r00%

ilI.

, Sr, frf o. , Name and ' CIN/CLN
' Address of

Holcling/ ('/o ctl' APPlicabl

. Sulosidiar Sharc e

The
\/

, /Associate

tJ63030WB 2016PTC21562 Sutrsidiarv

7

s I leld
Section

Companl,

]

e Roadsters

Private
Limited

KoLKhlAjl







;a) Bodies Corp.
r (i) lndian

i 1ii; overseas

t.-.."...

1b) Individuals
I 1i; tndividual

I

31 62 57r
J

35,62,575 36,00. I 20 -.)4. t/ |

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital upto

Rs. 1 lakh

3,06,

600

3,06,60 (r.056 4,90,560 4.lt57 -l.l 99

(ii) Individual

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs I

lakh

36,oo,0oo ' 36,00,000

I

I

35.644

i""...-"""
1c) Others(SPecifY)

l_"..__....._

lSub-total (BX2)

:

1 ---
:Total Public

ishareholding

i(e):(exr)*
(ttxz)

I

, C.Shates held bY

i Custodian fbr
j conr & ADRs

t"_"_
i Gland Total

:1n+s+c;

35,62,575 5;dii;

600

" j,tie 
,

600

38,69,1?5 12,00,120

12,00,120

76,90,680 -0.2n3

35,62,575 38,69,175 76,90,680 76.145 -0.2tt3

47,55,900

I

I
t

I

i

i 3,06,

. (r00
l

i

I

I
1

** r--
10t).000 96,09.{10

I
l

:

l

.t"..

I

I

I

*1".

, 4,90
i ,s6o

i

I

| ,0 | ,00,(,

00

I r)0.00

0



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLK,ATA-700007

CIN : L65 993 WB 1 9 8 3 P LC03 6332 E mai I : swatiplqisslq!-td@4n ai l' co m

Phone : 033 -22385 1 02 I +g I 9 8 3 0077000, Website : www. s-wati p ro-i ects-co m

ii.Sh a reh old i n g of P ro m ote rs

Shareholding at the
beginning of the Year

-l'sr'lier'rbroins at it'''" eno of
the year

iNo. of
iShare
i'̂5

;
t

o/o of
tota I

,Shares

1of the
iCOlllPd
I

rllY

:o/oof

iShares

tPledged /
jencumber

]ed to total

lshares

:No. of :o/o of
l-ota I

;lShares
jof the
icompan
:Y

;o/oof

Shares
Pledged /
,encum0er
red to total

,rl-r"t

o/o

cnange
.in share

;holding
,d u ring
,the year

-0.008

-o.i sq

Share
S

0.044 : 3600 0.036

0.807

ti]b:0""

2250

lobzs

+ol is

ss?d5

364200

" 
r +iizob

1.006 81480

64200
.." *......*."t."

0.793 I -
I

" *'*' **-*"t'**
11.607 ; -

j
94020

0
''' 
st)tz
0

Zitrz
0

50000

0

9.309

. 5.770

-0.157

-2.298

-1.421

-0.579

7.194

z.sz) 2.348

4.950 4.950

1193325 'i. 23.572 0.283



iii.Change in promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no

change

Sr.

no

Shareholdittg at the begttttttng or Cumulative Shareholding duting

the year

:shales olthe
,colnpany

No. of shat'es .% of total

i shrres olthe

t*" 1193325 23 s72 119J32s

col'llllally

23.5',12

Date wise Increase / I)ecrease t2r599s 13 79 2409320 23.Bss

'in Protroters Share holding

.during the Year sPecit,ving the

rfe?SollS for increase

,/ clecrease (e.g. allotllent /
,trarrsfet'/ bonus/ swcat cqLrity

'etc):

"initn.
End of the Yeat' 2409320 23.855 2409320 23.85s

1





SWATI PROJECTS LIMITEI)
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BAJ ATA-700007

CIfr: L65993W81983PLC036332 E mail nail'com

Phone : 033 -22385 1021 +g 1 9 83 0077000, Website : www'swati p rqi ects' co m

vr. a.E*a F*RI'A-|-^-P-E--RSQ[{-NE-I'

A.

Sl. No. Natrc clf Tot:rl

Anrouttt

2,46,000.00

Parliculars of Remuneration

1. Gross salarY

t

i 1u;satury as per provisions oontained in
' 

section I 7( l) of the Incotle Tax Act,
I 1961
I

(b )Value of perqr-risites u/s I 7(2) Income

MD/W I'D/Managcr

ihreegopal Daga ( Managing

Director)

2,46,000.00

Tax Act, I961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section

l7(3) Income Tax Act, I 961

Stock Option

Sweat EquitY

Commission

- asohofprofit

- Others, sPecifY. . .

2,46,000.00

z,+z,s8z.bo 
-

2.4(r,000.00

2.47,882.00

Manaqqr

KotKhlA'1



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BA 7

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332 E mai

Phone: 033 -22385 1 02 I +9 1 9 83 0077000'

B.

Sl. No. Particulals of Remuneration r

Total

AllloLllll
Namc of Directors

Sri Rishi

Kapoor

Sri Shiv Mani

Ojha

'Fee for attendiltg board, colnnlittee

nleetrngs

'Commission

' Others. please sPecilY

Total(1)

(ri A rrr rra g

f)r.'rt

Smt. Vatsala

Daga

'Fee for attending board' committee

meetings

'Commission

- Others, please sPeoifY

Total())

Total(B):(1+2)

KotKhlh-1







Annexure - II

FormNo. AOC-2

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/affangements enterecl into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain

arms length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

(u)Name(s)oftherelatedpartyandnatureofrelationship,-N.A.
iti Nature of contracts f arrangements/transactions - N'A'

i.i Duration of the contracts f uttung.tnents/transactions- N.A.

(d) salient terms of the contracts or u-rrur,g"*ents or transactions including the value, if any

- N.A.
(.) Justification for entering into such contracts oI arangements or transactions- N'A'

(fj Date(s) of approval by the Board - N'A'

igl Amount paid as advances, if any - N'A'
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under

first proviso to section 188- N'A'

2. Details of material contracts or affangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place :Kolkata

Date :30t'MaY,2022

For Swati

Name(s) of the related party and nature

Nature of

contracts / arrangements / transactions

Duration of the contracts

arrangements/ trans actions

Salient terms of the contracts or

arrangements or transaction including

the value, if any.

Out"1t; of APProval bY the Board

Amount paid as advance, if anY

jects Limited

0irector

[}irector Director



Annexure - III

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Pursuant to Clause 49 of Listing Agreement, a Management Discussion & l\nalysis report is given below: -

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The perfbrmance of the company was satisfactory during the year under review. Your cornpany incurred profit

Rs.49,57,643i- during the financial year 2021-2022.Your direr:tors are hopeful to achieve better results in

future.

2. OUTLOOK ON OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISK AND COI\CERNS

As far as the future outlook is concerned, the company is expected to increase the scope of the NBFC Business

in the future, considering the fact that industrial growth picks up'

The company is in position to compete with its competitors by better custolner services'

3. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

your company is committed to maintaining high standards of internal controls designed to provide accuracy of

information,efficiencyofoperations,andsecurityofassets.'Ihecompanyhasadequateinternalcontrols
commensurate with the size and nature of its operations to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business'

These controls ensure the safeguarding ofassets, prevention and detection offraud and error' the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial information and adherence to

companies, policies' procedures and legal obligations. The audit committee of the Board of Directors meets

periodically to review the performance as reported by the auditors'

4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The company,s revenue from operations forthe financial year2021-2022 is Rs' 92,98,2161- as conlpared to the

previous year of Rs. g5,0g,44gl-. The profit made forthe current Financial Year is Rs' 49,57,643l- The nrargirr

earned during the year is thin as compared to the previous year,cue to the reason of stiff cornpetition & G|obal

recessionary trend. The Directors expect better results in the nexl coming year'

5.MATERIALDEVELOPMENTSINHUMANRESOURCES/I}.]DUSTRIALRELATIONSFRONT

There has been no development on the Human Resource/ lndustrial Relations Front during the year'

6. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Management Discussion and Analysis report are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future

events. The company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized

bytheCompany.Actualresultscoulddiffermateriallyfromthrrseexpressedorimplied.lmportantfactorsthat
could make def.erence to the company,s operation include global and lndian market conditions, changes in the

Government Regulations, Tax regimes, WTO Regulations and such other factor' The Cornpany assurles no
-. ^..L.,^^.,^h+

responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any of atements on the basis, of any subseqLrent

developments, information or events'

Date: 30ft May,2022
For Sw

Director

For Swati o ts Limited

wati Proiect Limited

0irector
0irector



To Whom It MaY Concern

we, Shreegopal Daga, chairman & Managing Director and Shashi Kumar, chief

Financial Officer certifY that:

l. We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flou' statement for the year ended

31'' March, 2022 andto the best of our knowledge and belief:

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any

material fact or contain Statements that might be misleading;

b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Cornpany's affairs and

arc in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and

regulations.

2. Tothe best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the cornpany

during the year 
"nJed 

31; March, 20D2 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the

ComPanY's code of conduct'

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for

financial reporling and we have evaluaied the effectiveness of internal control

systems of t^he Coinpany pertai ng' Deficiencies in the design

or operation of sucir internal ich we are aware' have been

disclosed to the auditors and rnd steps have been taken to

rectify these defi ciencies.

4. i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial

reporting during the year under reference;

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year

requiringdisclosureinthenotestothefinancialstatemr:nts;and

iii) we are not aware of any instance during the 1's3l- of significant fraud with

involvement therein of the management or any emplolree having a significant role in

theCompany,sinternalcontrolsystemoverfinancialrr:porting'

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th MaY,2022

goPal Daga)

/ rr b
-.) hnlt lJ'*

(Shashi Kumar)
Chief Finarrcial Offi cerChairman & Managing Director

u



RISHI KAPOOR
IndePendent Director

1013X-5. GALI KHATIKAN, BAZAR DHAB KHATIKAN'

AMRITSAR-1 43001, PUNJAB, INDIA
Email : rishibrgnbc@gmail'com

Phone: 8725056320

I, Rishi Kapoor, Son of Late Shri Brij Lal Kapoor born on 27lh August' 1974' resident of S/o'

Late Brij Lal Kapoor, 1013X-5, Gali Khatikan, Bazar Dhab Khatikan' Amritsar - 143001'

Punjab, India, do hereby declare that I am not disqualified to act as an Independent Director of

M/s. Swati Projects Limited and further declare that:

A. I am a person of integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience'

B. i) I am not a Promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company'

ii) I am not related to Promoters or Directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary' or

associate ComPanY.

C. I have no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary' or associate

company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial

years or during the current financial year;

D. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company,

its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters' or directors amounting

to rwo percent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such

higheramountasmaybeprescribed,whicheverislowerduringthetrvoimmediately
precedingfinancialyearsorduringthecurrentfinancialyear;

E. I neither myself nor any of my relatives:

a. Holds or held the position of a key managerial personal or is or has been employee of the

company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial

years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be appointed;

b.Isorhasbeenanemployeeorproprietororapartner,inanyofthethreefinancialyears
immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be appointed' of -

l. Firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditor of the company

or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

2. Any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company'

its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of

the sross turnover of such firm;



RISHI KAPOOR

, 0, 3 x - s, o o' J*l,lil,ili,: H l;lT'Jl ry- 5" or I K AN'

AMRITSAR-1 43OO I, PUNJAB, INDIA

Email: rishibrgnbc@gmail'com
Phone: 8725056320

3. I do not hold together with my relative's two percent or more of the total voting

Power of the company; or

4. I am not a chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-

preorganrzation that receives twenty five percent or more of its receipts from the

company'anyofitspromoters,directorsoritsholding,subsidiaryorassociate
company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power of the

company; and

F. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed'

0"v
Date:30th MaY,2022

Place: Kolkata

Rishi Kapoor

lndependent Director



SHIV MANI OJHA
IndePendent Director

RAMAIPATTI' MAHUARIA,

MIRZAPUR - I3|OOI,UTTAR PRADESH, INDIA

Email:
Phone: 9216112878

I, Shiv Mani ojha (DIN: 08097947) residing at S/o' Kali Prasad ojha' Ramaipatti',

Mahuaria,Mirzapur,UttarPradesh-23l00ldoherebydeclarethatlamnotdisqualified
toactasanlndependentDirectorofM/s.SwatiProjectsLimitedandfurtherdeclarethat:

A.Iamapersonofintegrityandpossessrelevantexpertiseandexperience.

B. i) I am not a Promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company'

ii) I am not related to Promoters or Directors in the company' its holding' subsidiary' or

associate ComPanY'

C.Ihavenopecuniaryrelationshipwiththecompany,itsholding,surbsidiary,orassociate
company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial

years or during the current financial year;

D.Noneofmyrelativeshasorhadpecuniaryrelationshiportransactionwiththecompany'
its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters' or directors amounting

totwopercentormoreofitsgrossturnoverortotalincomeorfifty|akhrupeesorsuch
higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower during the two immediately

prlceding financial years or during the current financial year;

E. I neither myself nor any of my relatives:

a.Holdsorheldthepositionofakeymanagerialpersonalorisorhasbeenemployeeof
the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three

financialyearsimmediatelyprecedingthefinancialyearinwhichlamproposedtobe
aPPointed;

b. Is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in y of the three financial

years immediately preceding the financial ye-ar in which I am proposed to be

aPPointed, of -

.l.Firmofauditorsorcompanysecretariesinpracticeorcostauditorofthecompanyor
its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or



SHIV MANI OJHA
IndePendent Director

RAMAIPATTI, MAHUARIA,

MIRZAPUR _ 231001, UTTAR PRADESH, INDIA

Email:
Phone: 9216112878

2. Any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any l'ransaction with the company' its

holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of the

gross turnover of such firm;

3. I do not hold together with my relative's two percent or more of the total voting

power of the company; or

4. I am not a chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-

preorganization that receives twenty five percent or more of its receipts from the

company,anyofitspromoters,directorsoritsholding,subsidiaryorassociate
company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power of the company;

and

F. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed'

Date:30th MaY,2022

Place: Kolkata

Shiv Mani Ojha

lndependent Director



AMIT LAL
IndePendent Director

House No. 57, GaliNo. 18/3, New Dashmesh Nagar

Jaura Phatak, Amritsar - i43001

Email: amit-lal4u@Yahoo'co'in
Phone: 8725056315

I,AmitLal(DN:0946g579)residingatHouseNo.5T,GaliNo.l8/3,NewDashmesh
Nagar, Jaura Phatak, Amritsar-l43001 do hereby declare that I am not disqualified to act

as an Independent Director of lws. Swati Projects Limited and further declare that:

G.lamapersonofintegrityandpossessrelevantexpertiseandexperience.

H. i) I am not a Promoter of the company or its holding' subsidiary or associate company'

ii) I am not related to promoters or Directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary' or

associate ComPanY'

I.Ihavenopecuniaryrelationshipwiththecompany,itsholding'subsidiary'orassociate
company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial

years or during the current financial year;

J. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company'

its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters' or directors amounting

totwopercentormoreofitsgrossturnoverortotalincomeorfiftylakhrupeesorsucn
higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower during the two immediately

preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

K. I neither myself nor any of my relatives:

c.Holdsorheldthepositionofakeymanagerialpersonalorisorhasbeenemployeeof
the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three

financial years immediatelylreceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be

aPPointed;

d.Isorhasbeenanemployeeorproprietororapartner,inaryofthethreefinancial
years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be

aPPointed' of -

5. Firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditor of the company or

its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

otKlshl



AMIT LAL
IndePendent Director

House No. 57, GaliNo' 18/3, New Dashmesh Nagar

Jaura Phatak, Amritsar - 143001

l.

Phone: 8725056315

Any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the cotnpany, its

holding,subsidiaryorassociatecompanyamountingtotenpercentormoreofthe
gross turnover of such firm;

Idonotholdtogetherwithmyrelative,stwopercentormoreofthetotalvoting
power of the company; or

I am not a chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-

preorganization that receives twenty five percent or more of its receipts from the

company' any of its promoters, director, o, it, hotding, subsidiary or associate

companyorthatholdstwopercentormoreofthetotalvotingpowerofthecompany;

2.

a

and

L. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed'

Date:30th MaY,2022

Place:Kolkata

Amit Lal

Independent Director

w
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- '" [n1.6s6, \I{ebsilg :tww'mmodiin

of CorPorate
IndePen Board of India

Governan (as amended)
(Listing

To The Members

Swati Projects Limited

1688, Jamunalal Bajaj Street'

Kolkata - 700007, India

1" The CorPorate Govern

contains details as stiP

Managements' ResPonsibilitY

2. The preparation of tht i is the responsibility of the

Management of the Cor ,"t;: 
t::l;l:

supporting records an( reparation and

imPlementation and mi

fr"r.ntution of the Corporate Governance Report'

3.TheManagementalongwiththeBoardofDirectorsarealsoresponsibleforensuringthat
the company complies with the conditions of corporate Governance as stipulated in the

Listing Regulations, issued UV ti-t. Securities and Eichange Board of India'

Auditors' ResPonsibilitY

4. Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion with the

conditions of Corporat cou.,nJ*t,-as stipulated in the Listing Regulations'

5. We conducted our ex RePort

the Guidance Note on rPoses (

the Guidance Note on o",O"llln iil . on Reports or

ffff*::'1"rfi"""# s that we complv with the ethical

requirements of the C

6. we have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality

co ntro l (sec) r, eu arity conrror rb' ;ifi il 1 i.',!.lT l* *: Tj#Jf#: 
Histori car

;''il.i: i "\'fft##o,i 
;i iil;; A ; " 

;n ce an d Rer ated s e rv ice En gagem e nt s'

sY

New Delhi - 110065' M:9425811241
do, ntu"tt", b"ri"-n-n"l - oooo98' M :9884855214



The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the iisks associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the

applicable criteria. The procedures include but not limited to verification of secretarial

.icords and financial information of the Company and obtained necessary representations

and declarations from directors including independent directors of the Company'

The procedures also include ixamining evidence supporting the particulars in the

Corporate Governance Report on test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report

did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the

fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the

Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

g. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 7 and 8 above and

according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the

Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2022, referred to in
paragraph 1 above.

Other Matters and Restriction on use

10. This report neither an assuranie as to the future viability of the Company nor the

efficieniy or effectiveness with which the rnanagement has conducted the affairs of the

CompanY.

I l. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the

pr.po.. of enabling it to comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations and

should not be used by any other purpose. AccordinglY, w€ do not accept or assume any

liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is

shown or into whoie hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no

responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date

of this report.

7.

8.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30'n May,2022

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E'

uDrN tiffrl6q,*,
0U f rf'\ ''6 Y

Ptrlner



M MODI &ASSOGIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To
The Board of Directors,

Swati Projects Limited
1688, Jamunalal Bajaj Street'

Kolkata-700007

As required under Non-Banking Financial ccompanies Auditors' Report (Reserve bank) Direction and on the basis

oilnfo.rnution and explanation given to us' we report thal:

3A)

1) The company is engaged in the busineq' of Non-Banking'FinanOial Institution and it has obtained a

r"tiin..oi oiregistiation from Reserve Bank of India' 
,,

On the b ofcurrent year Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account we hereby

report th " 4"*i: hold such certificate of registration in terms of its

asiets/in Match,2022'

on the basis of our examination of current year Balance Sheet we report that the company be classified'

based on its assets, as an INVESTMENT COMPANY'

The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for Non-Accept&nce of any Public Deposit'

TheCompanyhasnotacceptedanyPublicDepositduringtheyearended3|"rMarch,2022.

The Company has compli p-rudential norm ards

usr"t, 
"lurrification 

and p for bad and dou

e;"ki"JFi*ncial (Nonbeposits cepting orHoldi

Directions, 2007.

2)

3)

3C)

l)

2)

3)

4) The company is not a systematically important company,ps defined-in Paragraph 2(1) (xix) of the Non-

Banking Finanoial ffio"posit Accepting "t 
n"iai"gl|ompanies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2007.

Date: LL-
Place:

FORM. MODI & ASSOCIATES
(Chartered Accountants)

Reg No. :0319141E

Partner
M'No' :054366

uDrN: lLosl ?6 6 fr{V0u (pg2-t1

B.o.:114/13,Amritpuri,Ga|iNo.13'GarhiEastofKai|ash.NewDe|hi-110065.M:942581124'|
Kochar panchsheet, Btock-1 Ftat - V\r9, r)6, cilr noad, Ambattur' chennai - 600098' M : 9884855214
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IndePendent Auditors' RePort

To
iil. rU.*U.rs of M/s'Swati Projects Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We ompanying standalone financial statements of IWs

Lim which totptitt itte Standalone Balance Sheet as at

the t of Profit ft;"" tiry] 
"t"6;1i'f

m':m::?:ffi:1.:J:"'?il:':#1f,:H r . ruding a summarv or the

sisnificant accounting policies.r,o otr.,.. i-*planatory information (hereinaier referred to as "the

tiinJuf on" fi nancial statements")'

In our opinion and to the best of our information and abco_rding to the explanations given to us'

the aforesaid stanoaion. finun.iur ,tut.il.ntl";i;; ih.,informa-tion required by the compantes

Act, 2013 (,,the Act??) in rhe manner ,";.q"i;J and give a l';ffi fair view in conformity with

the Indian Accounting Standards pr.r.rib undei 
"ttion- 

i:: of the Act read with the

companies 0"di*'A:;;t*ltalnJaidO 
tt tt*atd' ("Ind AS") and other

accounting principles generally accepted in ttutt of affairs of the Company as at

March 31,2022,the profit and other compre "' 
fft"ttg"t in equity and its cash flows

for the Year ended on that date'

Basis for OPinion

we conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing ,p..ir,ll-*Jer section r+iiioj 
"irrte 

Act. oui i.rp*sibilities under those SAs are

further described in the Auditor,s ili)J'riittrtir, 7o, ,1it. i'[1' "t '1.',:'o'dolone 
Financiat

Statements sectioo'oi^ou' ttpon' We are independent of the Comp y ln

Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of CharteieO Attouniuntt of fn i irC the

ethical requirements that are relevant -*, *ait of the "ta;uLn" 
financial

provisions "f 
th;'A;"una ,t. R"l;;1h;.;;d*' una *t-ttuut tulfilled our other ethical

iesponsibilities in ac quirem-ents # ;h; ICAI's code of Ethics' we

believe that the audit is sufficieniuna upptopriate to provide a basis for

our audit oPinion on t atements'

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that' in our

significance in our t"Ait of the standalone financial

;il;;ru.'uaa""J in the context of our audit of

professional judgement' were of-most

ii.,Lt."u of tnt current period' These

the standalone financial statements as a

B.O : 114/13, Amritpun, Gali No -1 sh' New Delhi - 110065'M 
"9425811241

Kochar Panchsheel, Block-1 Road' Ambattur' b-ne-nnai - 600098' M : 9884855214



whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

matters.

we do not provide a separate opinion on these

Description of KeY Audit Matter

Evaluation of tax Positions

How the matter was addressed in our audit
The key audit matter

O* uudit procedures on taxation include the

following:
. 'Obtained an understanding of key tax

litigations and potential tax exposures.

o Evaluated the design, implementation

and operating effectiveness of the

internal controls relating to the

Company's assessment of the possible

outcome of tax litigations, potential tax

exposures and related disclosures in the

standalone financial statements'

o The audit team, along with our internal

" KX#o'Ti; anatyzeid select kev

correspondences and consultations

carried out by the Company including
.with external tax experts for key tax

litigations and potential tax exposures'

d 'Inquired with the Company and external

tax experts to evaluate key assumptions

and grounds of appeal considered by the

Company in estimating the current tax

balances.
4 Evaluated the status of the recent tax

assessments/inquiries, results of
previotts tax assessments, legal

precedence/judicial rulings and changes

in tax environment. This is performed to

assess and challenge the ComPanY's

estimate of the possiblb outcome of key

tax litigations and Potential tax

exposures.
Q .Assessed and tested the adequacy and

accuracy of the Presentation and

'disclosures in the standalone financial

statements.

Th. Co*pany's operations in India are

subject to periodic challenges by local tax

authorities on a range of tax matters arising in

the normal course of business including direct

tax and transfer Pricing matters. :

statements.



Other Information

The Company,s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information'

The other information"comprises the informatior included in the Company's annual report' but

does not include the standaione financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual

report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report'

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we

do noi express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon'

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above''when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated'

when we read the annual report, if we cbnclude that there is a material misstatement therein' we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary

actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations'

Managements and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial

Statements

The Company,s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in

Section 134(5) of the companies Act,2013 ('the Act') with respect to the p-reparation of these

standalone financiai statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss

equity and cash flows of the Company in

.ruily accepted in India, including the Indian

sectiori 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

the accuracy and completeness of the accou

presentation of the standalone financial statem

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

have no realistic alternative but to do so'

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process'



Auditors, Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable a

;;;.;;,t as a whole are free from material

i;;t; ;" auditor's report that includet",iXlrun 
conducted in acc

enitexists.Misstatementscanarisefromfraudorerrorandare
V "' 

* titt ugg'"gx"' they could :,tt::"*^tL 
be expected to

ofuserstakeqonthebasisofthesestandalonefinancial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs' we exercise professional judgment and maintain

;;;ffi;l skepticism throughout the audit' We also:

+ IdentifY and assess the risks. of

statements, whether due to fraud or

to those risks, and obtain audit ev

basis for our oPinion mater

fraudishigherthanfoasfruudmayinvolvecollusion,forgery,
intentional omissions' override of internal control'

+ obtain an understandin :fl:::tilH,?:ll#txT&lll
design audit procedures ,inion on whether the Company

of the Act, we are also g effectiveness of
has adequate internal fil nd the operatin

such controls'

4 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting *,f,ili.J"rJrelated disclosures made by ma agement'

4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's

accounting;td" b#tin the audit evidence obtai

exist related to events

abilitY to continue as

we have required to.d s are inadequate, to modify- our

standalone financial s -e obtained up to the date of our

opinion' Our conclusir *uy ,uur. the Company to cease

auditor's rePort' Howt

to continue as a going concern'

4Evaluatetheoverallpresentation,structureandcontentofthestandalonefinancial
statements, including the dis;;;.;;-;J whether the standalone financial statements

represent ihe underlying t u*ultion, and events in a manner that achieves fair

Presentation'



in the standalone financial statements'

We communicate with those charged with governance regafding' among..other matters' the

planned scope and timing of the uuait unJ ,iinificant audiifindings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal colntrol that we identify during our audit'

ith a statement that we have complied with

ence, and to communicate with them all

be thought to bear on our independence' and

n.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l.AsrequiredbySection143(3)oftheAct,basedonouraudit'wereportthat:

a,Wehavesoughtandobtainedalltheinformationandexplanations.whichtothebest
orr.no*r.ogJand belief were necessafy for the purposes of our audit'

b.Inouropinion,properbooksofaccountasrequired^bylawhave,beenkeptbythe
Companysofarasitappearsfromourexaminationofthosebooks.

c.Balancesheet,thestatementofProfitandLoss(includingother
ncome), the Siandalone Statement of changes of Equity and the

FlowsdealtwithbythisR,gportareinagreementwiththebooksof
account.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standaris prescribed under Section 133 of the Act'

e.onthebasisofthewrittenrepresentationsrersofthe
CompanyasonMarch3l'2022'iakenonrecords'noneof
thedirectorsisdisqualineaasonMarch3I,2o22adirector
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act'



I. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with the ,"qui."-Jnis of section 197(16) c f the Act' as amended:

thebestofourinformationandaccordingtotheexplanations
eration paid by;h'-; d;p*,y-to its directors during the year is

provisions of section 197 of the Act'

h. With resPect to the in

with Rule 11 of the ito

opinion and to the ac

US:

(i)TheCompany-didnothaveany,pendinglitigationswhichmayhavean
impact on the financial p"riri""if the compaiy in its standalone financial

statement'

(iDTheCompanydidnothaveanylong-termcontractsincludingderivative
contractsforwhichthereareanymaterialfcreseeablelosses.

(iiDTheCompanyisnotrequiredtotransferanyamounttothelnvestor
Education lnd Protection Fund'

2.AsrequiredbytheCompanies(Auditor,sReport)o1d9r,2020(,theorder,)issuedbythe
central Government in lerms of s".tio' i+1ir rj of the 

Act, we give in 'Annexure B' a

statement on the ;;;;, ,p.cified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order'

Place: Kolkata

Date:30s MaY,2022

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

(Me 6)

'DIN 
ils2e'l

FRN:319141E



(Referred to in paragraph 1(f1 under,'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

section of our report a tt 
" 

members of M/s. Swati Projects Limited of even date)

Report on the lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub-

section3ofSectionl43oftheCompaniesAct'2013('theAct')

We have audited the internal financial contr nancial

of M/s. SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED ( 022 \n c

with our audit of the standalone financial statem for the

on that date'

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects' adequate internal financial controls

with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were

operating effectively as at 31 March, zdDz,based on the internal reference

to standalone financial statements criteria established by the co essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note Financial

controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India (the

"Guidance Note").

The company,s management nd the Board of Direciors are responsibre for establishing and

maintaining internal financial controls based on the criteria-, ::]1l1tf,ir::"i\:":T#:
;Tffi,,ffi ,il#;;il;;;;;,'o, ,n,"rnal control stated in the Guidance Note. rhese

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of

its business, including adherence to the compuny'' policies' the safeguarding of its assets' the

prevention and detect]on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Ac1,2013'

Auditor's ResPonsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

reference to standalone financial staternents b

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit



adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were

established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about thd adequacy of the

internal financial contrors with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating

effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements included obtaining an understanding of such intemar financial controls, assessing the

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed risk'

Theproceduresselecteddependontheauditor'sjudgement'includingtheassessmentoftherisks
ofmaterialmisstatementofthestandalonefinancialstatements,whetherduetofraudorerror.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the company's internal financial controls with reference to

standalone fi nancial statements'

ACompany'sinternalfinancialcontrolwithreferencetostandalonellnanUral
processdesignedtoprovidereasonableassuranceregardingthereliabilityoffinancialreporting
and the preparation of standalone financial statements for externar purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principies. A company's internal control with reference to

standalone financial statemenl include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

Companyarebeingmadeonlyinaccordancewithauthorizationsofthemanagementand
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabre assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could

have a material effect on the standalone financial statements'

Statements

Because of the inherent rimitations of,internal financial controls with reference to standalone

financial statemenrs, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material rnisstatements due to efror or frauci may occur and not be detected' Also'

projectionsofanyevaluationoftheintemalfinancialcontrolswithreferencetostandalone
financiar statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

standalone financial statement is



with referlence to standalone flnancial statements may become t

I

conditionb, or that the degree qf compliance with the policies or

i

Oeinion 
i

In our oflinion, to the best of our

Compand has- in all material,rvvrrry*u.f

referenc{ gial sure'rs'Lr Gurs

'*"'"t."l, 4ts were oPerating

with retereqce to

dering the esEe al
dering the es$e

on Audii of Internal Financi4l Erere'vs '- standa

U",ft. ttf*ftute of Chartered Ac dia'
-l

I

rtaceit<ottata

I

I

oate:130h MaY,2o22
I

I

because ofchanfies

may deteriorotq.

explanations given to tts;

ial controls sYsteilP

al oontrols with
'clrr 31, 2022, basqd on

criteria established bY

I stated in the GuidanCe

financial stateme$t$ I



(Referred to in paragr aph2under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section

of our report to the members of M/s. Sw,ati Projects Limited of even date)

With reference to the Annexure B refened to in thp Independent Auditors' Report to the

members of the Company on standalone financial statements for the year ended 3l't March'

2022,we report the following:

i) ln respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) Based on our verification of the company's books of account and other records

andaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsreceivedbyusfromthe
management, we are of the opinion that the question of commenting on maintenance

of proper records of Property, Plant and Equipment does not arise since the company

hadnoProperty,PlantandEquipmentason3l/03l2O22noratanytimeduringthe
financial v.* ended 3110312022. Accordingly other disclosures are also Not

Applicable under clause 3 (i) of the Order'

(B) Based on our verification of the company's books of account and other records

and according to the information and explanations received by us from the

management, we are of the opinion that the question of commenting on maintenance

of proper records of Intangible assets does not arise since the company had no

IntangibleassetsaSon3|10312022noratanytimeduringthefinancia|yearended
3110312022. Accordingly other disclosures are also Not Applicable under clause 3 (i)

of the Order

ii)TheCompanyisinthebusinessofprovidingnon-bankingfinancialservicesand
does not huue any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3 (ii) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company'

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has given

loans to five parties, covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the

companies Act,2013.The above said Loans and Advances are not prejudicial to the

interest of the Company. The Loans and Advances given and year end balances are

disclosed in notes to Accounts' :r

iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

compuny has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies

Act,20l3,inrespectofloans,investments,guaranteesandsecurity.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions Section 73 to 76 or any other



vi)

vii)

any othef relevant provisions of the Act and the companies (Acceptance of Deposit)

Rules,20l5withregardtothedepositsacceptedfromthepublicarenotapplicable'

ThemaintenanceofcostrecordshasnotbeenspecifiedbytheCentralGovernment
under Section 14g(1) of the companies Act,20i3 for the business activities carried

outbytheCompany.Thu,,reportingunderClause3(Vi.)oftheorderisnotapplicable
to the ComPanY'

According to the information and explanations given to us'

dues:

TheCompanyhasgenerallybeenregularindepositingundisputedstatutorydues,
including Income Tax and other material statutory clues applicable to it with the

;;;."0r;" authorities'

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax and other

material statutory Ou., in affears ^ 
ut fvf*tt' 31,20'2 for a period of more than six

months from the date they bebame payable'

DetailsofstatutoryDuesreferredtoinsubClause(a)whichhavenotbeendeposited

b.

c

ason3l.o3.2o22onaccountofdisputesareaSfollows:-

Pot fV 2014-2015

in resPect of statutorY

A.Y. 2015 -2016 under PAN

issued in the name of ComPanYComPanY has filed its return

AAIICS8355A but notice under

of Income for:

Section 148 was

Period Forom where

dispute is

pending

Amount (Rs.)
Nam" of the

statute

Nature oI

Dues

CIT (APPeals)
10,57,4101- 1983-84

lncome Tax

Act 1961

Income'l'ax

r984-8s -ClT (APPeals)

lncome Tax

Act 1961

Income Tax 24,44,3911

CIT (APPeals)
5,88,517/-. 1985-86

Income Tax

Act 1961

Income Tax

CIT (APPeals)
49.99,8311- 1986-E /

-lncome Tax

Act 1961

Income Tax

-CtT (APPeals)
59,69.7601- 2014-IJ

Income Tax

Act 1961

lncome'I'ax



and assessment under section 148/143(3)

AAIICS5732M.

has been comPleted under PAN

viii) According to the informatioh and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examinationoftherecordsoftheCompany,thecompanyhasnotsurrenderedor
disclosedanytransactions,previo,,,lyun,..ordedas-incomeinthebooksofaccount,
inthetaxassessmentsunderthelncomeTaxAct,lg6lasincomeduringtheyear.

ix)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventousandonthebasisofour
examinationoftherecordsortt,"Co,npu,'y,theCompanyhasnotdefaultedinthe
repaymentofloansorborrowingsorinthepaymentsofinterestthereontoanylender.

x)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous,thecompanyhas
complied with provisions of section a2 ind62 of the'ompanies Act'2013 and on the

basisofourexaminationoftherecordsoftheCompany,theCompanyhasissued
20,00,000 equity shares @ Rs. it linctuaing Rs. 1/- Share Premium per share) on

preferential attoiment or private ft..nl*, arr.ing the year' Accordingly' clause 3 (x)

is aPPlicable'

xi)Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedandtheinformationandexplanations
givenbythemanagement,*.,.ponthatnofraudbythecompanyoronthecompany
by its ofhcers and Imploy..r,ha, been noticed or reported during the year'

xii)Inouropinion,theCompanyisnotaNidhicompany.Therefore,theprovisionof
clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company'

xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections

|TTandls8oftheCompaniesAct,2013andthedetailshavebeendisclosedinthe
StandaloneFinancialstut.'.nt"asrequiredbytheapplicableaccountingstandards.

xiv) ln our opinion and based upon our examination' the company has'an internal audit

system commensurate with the size and nature of business'

Xv)Accordingtotheinformati,onandexplanationsgivenbythemanagement,the
Co,npun/tas not entered into uny.*nl.u:l^,lansactions with directors or persons

connectedwithhim.Accordingly,theprovisionsofclause3(xxiii)oftheorderare
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon

xvi)TheCompanyhasbeenalreadyregisteredunderSection45IAoftheReserveBank
of India Act, 1934'

xvii)TheCompanyhasnotincurredcashlossesinthecurrentandintheimmediately
Preceding financial Year'

u



Xviii)AjayKumarGupta,Chartered-Accountants(MembershipNo.054378)hasbeen
resigned as Statutory Auditors during the year due to pre-occupation' Accordingly'

the issue is taken into consideration'

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expect.d du.., of realisation of financial assets and

paymentotfinancialliabilities,otherinformationaccompanyingthestandalone
financial statements, our knowleir" "rrn" "oard 

of Directors and management plans

andbasedonourexaminationoftheevidencesupportingtheassumptions,nothing
has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty

exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a

periodofoneyearfromthebalancesheetdate.We,however,statethatthisisnotan
assufanceastothefutureviabilityoftheCompany.Wefurtherstatethatour
reportingisbasedonther*t,.,ptothedateoftheauditreportandweneithergive
anyguaranteenoranyassuran""tt'utallliabilitiesfallingduewithinaperiodofone
yearfromthebalancesheetdate,willgetdischargedbytheCompanyasandwhen
theY fall due'

xX)Inouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous,the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act read'with the companies (corporate social

ResponsibilityPolicy)Rules,2'o|4,theCorporateSocialResponsibility(CSR)isnot
aPPlicable to the ComPanY'

xxi)Inouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventousthereis
no such qualifications and adverse remarks'

Place: Kolkata

Date:30th MaY,2022

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountqnls

' FRN: 3191418

Partner
(MembershiP No'

uDrN: Wo(s



In terms of our report of even date attached.
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCB SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH,2022

For and on,behalf of

For Swati Projects Limited

-rn)xf<-o\-) ,/
Managing Director <....--
Name: ShreegopalDaga

DIN: 0397379

imited

Name: Rishi Kapoor:

DIN: 08422654

For Swati Projects Limited

Q*. -to&
Company Secretary
Name: Ravi Todi

i',-ll:,ltlli:{..)iS;iti!_t i\ir-.:. '"iii:i.l,r,:l - , ,'"- .'
UbtNr f2-s,.tltt*f'.tOUPflJZSq':i''
Place: Kolkata
Date! 30th May,2O2Z

Limited

r

Limited

91,*," h"-
ChiefFinancial Officer
Name: Shashi Kumar

(Rs. In hundredl

1. Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Loans
(c) Investments
(g) Other Financial Assets

2. Non-Financial Assets

J

4

5

6

1,242.53

l I,10,81 1.20

50,255.00
30,262.42

1,022.55

8,90,361.23

255.00
30,258.95

I UI'AL ASSETS LL,92,57t.15 9,2L,997.73I,IARII ,ITTE'S ^ffil. Financial Liabilities

2. Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
(b) Defened Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities

3. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
[b) Other Equity

7

8

9

10

LT

18,o40.78

13.27
1.,820.O7

10,10,000.00

!,62,697.03

17,943.96

13.27

920.00

5,06,250.00

3,96,870.50

I () I'A[, LIABILITIES AND EQUTTY
r!\wrrrt,.rrJr'B 

'

Anurag Daga



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH.2022

. of ou ven chetl
l-;: __if.tl {_;N

For and on behalf of

C i:G t'(t :r fi {i,.q'.:ciciu ntAnrs

Nme: Slueegopal Daga
DIN: 0397379(iv!.

f)art
i;t,:6;fi:X;fgp, f.t o : -0 54.3 66

Date:30thMay,2O22

tvicli)!)

Nme: Rishi Kapoor
DIN:08422654

For Swati Projects Limited

For Swati Projects Limited

tuA
Independent Dfector
Nme: Amit Lal
DIN:09469579

For Swati Projects Limited

ff- -r.. l,r) v)^ lAlvrt
Lilr€r f tmclal ulilcet
Nme: Shohi Kmar
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M/S. SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Profit Before Tax & Extraordinary ltems

Profit before Working Capital Changes

Changes in other payables
Changes in Reserve & Surplus

Generated from Operations

Term Borrowings
Financial Assets

Cash from Investing Activities

Increse/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalants
t+C)

& Cash Equivalants at the beginning of the year

& Cash Equivalants at the end of the year

2,00,000.00
20,000.00

85,084.48

& Cash Equivalants include:
in Hand

Scheduled Banks in - Current Accounts

In terms of our report of even date attached.
:.:':ir i) X :v'i (j r" r i 8, r.,l; :] Cf lrl'. ;- I : I
Cir?;r'ir'; tai'it$ .. .:jt:t-:ii..
;i(lt - :--"' t. -.1

r n llr n ,ii -:q' "n i;J.':

f,'or and on behalfof

For Swati Projects Limited F

*--1
Managing Director L-
Name: Shreegopal Daga
DIN: 0397379

I-imited

Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN: 08422654

For Swati Projects tjmited

{{&Ji -tdq
Company Secretary

Name: Ravi Todi

Daga

Swati Projects Limited

kt-4
Independent Director
Name: Amit Lal
DIN: 09469579

For Swati Projects Limited

$rt'b,^*
ChiefFinancial Officer
Name: Shashi Kumar

Place: Kolkata

Direc



Sharb Capital

reporting period

M/S. SWATI PROJECTS

STAI,IDALONE STATEMENT OF CIIANGES
For the year ended on 31st March, 2

For and on bohalfof

ryg ProJects Limited
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M/S. SWATI PROIECTS IIMTTED
KOLKATA

equity shares of the
Metropolitan Stock
1688, Jamunalal Baj

List of Subsidiaries with nercentaee holding

These financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordancewith the Indian Accounting Standards ui p", the companies ltndian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notilied under Section r33 of the

("the Act"), in conformity with the accounting principles
India and other relevant provisions of the- ict. Any

larifications/directions issued by RBI or other regulators
ors urrprerlerrecl as and when th e issued/applicable.

FORTHEPERIODEW

Country of % of holding

3t-03-2021

Roadsters Pvt. Ltd.

w



b.F

nearest hundred, unless otherwise indicated.

lndian Rupees (,INR or Rs.,) which is
All amounts are rounded-off to the

c. Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Interest on loans by the company is recognized on accrual basis.

Property. Plant & Equipments
Fixed assets having negligible values are stated under retained earninss.

g. Depreciation
As the assets were transferred to retained earnings, no depreciation was required
to be provided.

h. Revenue Recognition

These financial statements ur. p.er"nted in
also the Company,s functional currencv.

d. Use of Estimates

accounting estimates is recognized pros

e. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are rePorted using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax isadjusted for the effects of transactions of u non-"urh nature and any deferrals oraccruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regularrevenue generatin_g, financing and irvesting activities of the compa.rf u."segregated' Cash. flows in foreign currencies ur" 

"""ourrted 
at the actual rates ofexchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.



Investments
Investments are stated at cost. AII investments
value of some of them has been eroded due to
provision has been made in the book of account.

are long-term investments. The
Market conditions for which no

J Contineent Liabilities
There are no so-called contingent liabilities.

k.

the current financial year any foreign currency

The company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section l I5BAA of theIncome Tax Act, 1967 as introduced uv ftg Taxation Lu;r (L"ndment) ordinance,2019' Accordingly, the company has relognized provision for'Income Tax for the yearended 31't Mar:ch,2022.

covD-lg has caused significant disruptions to businesses across India. Themanagement has considered the possible effetts, if any, that may impact on the business,In making the assumptions and estimates relating to the uncertainties as at the balancesheet date in relation to the recoverable amoJnts, the management has consideredsubsequent events, internal and extemal information and evaluatfd economic conditionsprevailing as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The management
expects no impairment on the operations. The management will continu. i" ;I"*iymonitor any changes to future iconomic conditions- and assess its impact on theoperations.

3. Cash & cash equivalents:

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

Balance with Schedule Banks in 1,225.03

KOLKATA.T



4. Loan:

Current Year 31.03 .2022

At Fair Value

Throug
h Profit
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

5=2+3+4

Daga Co.
(Partnership

9,37,191.67
9,37,191.67

Vinal
Investments
Limited
Piyush
Securities
Pvt. Ltd.

34,912.97
34,912.97

Radhashree

Apartments
Pvt. Ltd.

96,447.05

Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

33,999.64
33,999.64

11,10.911.20
11,10,911.20

i,1
(+



Previous Year 31.03.2021

st.
No.

Particulars Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Throug
h Other
Compr
ehensic
e

Income

Through
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

(7) (8) 19) fl0) 1l:8+9+10) (12=7+11l. Loans
Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

8,82,019.56
8,92,019.56

b. Vinal
Investments
Limited

8,341.67
8,341.67

c. Piyush
Securities
Pvt. Ltd.

d. Radhashree
Apartments
Pvt. Ltd.

e. Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

TOTAL 8,90,361.23
8,90,361.23





sl

N
o.

Previous year
31.o3.2021

Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars lnrou
gh

Other
Comp
rehens

tce
Incom
e

I hrough
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

1. !qurry rr|slrumgnts:

a. Quoted:
IUU Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.l0)

22.00
22.00

100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.l0)

15.00
15.00

Unquoted:
1,000 Equity Shares of
M/s. Bihar Sponge Iron
Limited (Face Value Rs.
r0)

218.00
2 r 8.00

52,500 Equity Shares of
Mis. Radhashree
Roadsters Pvt. Ltd.
Subsidiary Co. (Face
Value Rs. l0)
4,47,500 Equity Shares
(Right Issue) of NzVs.

Radhashree Roadsters
Pvt. Ltd. - Subsidiary
Co. (Face Value Rs. l0)
TOTAL 255.00 255.00

,I 'rLrLnAIn ,lm

o2T

U#P



6. Other Financial Assets:

7. Current Tax Liabilities:

8. Deferred Tax Liabilities:

9.

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

1.

Income Taxa.
80.49

b. lncome l ax Deducted at Sources l5 5tn/n 12,593.52c. Advance Income Tax
d.

u.6uu.00 l6 l\o nn
rncome t ax Retund 5,421.53

e. 448.23
1n nn 10.00f.
50.00 50.00o Core System

67.1rh. t\/rvrvLrvpvrrL<lll,)tUUl( DXCnanqg OI
India (MSEI) 2s9.60

The Calcutta Stock Ex".h".*
Limited

590.00

TOTAL
30,262.42 30,259.95

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03 -2021

Provision for Taxation
t7,843.96

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

Defened Tax Liabilities

st.
No.

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

a. Auqlt f ess tsayabte ?50 00 r00.00
b. Ashwani Gupta & Co. 100.00 100.00
c. Bonus Payable l?o oo r20.00
d. Legal & Professional Fees pavahG 800.00 600.00
e. r. r,,. r(anoar dE uo. 550 00
f.

0.07
TOTAL 1.820.07 920.00



SI
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021

l. AUTHORIZED CAPITAT
JJ,vv,vvu Dqulty Snares of Rs.
I 0/- each

5,50.000.00 5,50,000.00

Ju,uu,uuu tqulty Shares of Rs.
l0i- each

5,00,000.00

5,50,000.00
TOTAL 10,50,000.00

3,37,500.00

)

33,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs
10i- each, Fully Paid-up

3,37,500.00

16,87,500 Bonus Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid-uo

1,69,750.00 1,69,750.00

JU,J/,)uu bonus Equrty Shares of
Rs. 10/- each, Fully Paid-up

3,03,750.00

20,00,000 (Preferential Issue)
Equity Shares of Rs. l0/- each.
Fully Paid-uo

2,00,000.00

rUIAL 10,10.000.00 5,06,250.00

The Company has only one class of Equity Slrares having a par value of Rs. l0/- per
share. Each holder of Equity shares is entiiled to one vodp; share.

As at 31-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

(Units in (Amount in (Units in (Amount in

Number of shares
outstanding as at the
beginning of the financial

5,06,25,000

Add: Increase in number of

Bonus Share Issues 3,03,75,000



Less: Reduction in numbei
of shares during the

Number of shares
outstanding as at the end of
financial year (March 3l) or

1,01,00,000 10,10,00,000 50,62,500 5,06,25,000

Particulars As at 31-( t3-2022 As at 3f-03-2021
No. of
Shares held

"h of
Iloldins

No. of
Shares held

Yo of
Holdins

ryllglgr s flrrtotllg
9,40,200Sudha Daga 9.31% 5,97,625 tr.6r%Vatsala Daga 5,82.720 5.77% 3,64.200 7.19%

Non-Promoter's Holdins
Anuroon Intrastructure Pvt. Ltd 6.00.000 5.94% 3,75.000 7.41%Du[lpur rower rnvate Llmlted 6,00.000 5.94% 3,75,000 7.41%rarrnlul Llom Merchants private
Limited

3,75,000 7.41%

Jaguar Infra Developers private
Limited

3,75,000 7.41yo

Multifold Plastic Marketing private
Limited

3,75,000 7.41%

Original Fashion Traders private
Limited

3,75,000 7.4r%

Pears Mercantiles Private Limited 3,75,000 7.4r%Dnrcyans rmDrotdery Machine
Private Limited

3,75,000 7.41%

Wonderland Paper Suppliers private
Limited

6,00,000 534% 3,75,000 7.41%

Radhashree Finance Limited 15.00.000 r4.85%

(v) The Company was issued 16,87,500 Bonus Shares in preceding previous financial
year 2019-2020 and 30,37,500 Bonus Shares issued during ttre perild and 20,00,000
Preferential Issues (FY 2021-2022). The Company has not bought back shares during the
period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.



(vi) Shareholding of promoters:

Shares held by promoters ut n. *A of tt. v.*

No. of Shares % of total
shares

Vinal Investments Limited 2,37,120
Ganpati Stocks private
Limited

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
I EIqhtrL Loss Account

Opening Balance 94.298.20 52.479.35
Add: Profit for the vear 49.576.43 53.055.1sLess: Iranster to Statutory
Reserve

9,915.29 10,61L03

Less: Bonus Shares Issue (5:3) 66,250.00
Less: Written off Non-current
Investments

625.27

Closing Balance 67.709.34 94.298.20

2. Statutory Reserve 74,997.69 65,072.40
3. Share Premium

Opening Balance 2.:\7.500.00 2.37.500.00
Less: Bonus Shares Issue (5:3) 2.37.s00.00
Add: Preferential lssues 20.000.00
Closing Balance 20.000.00 2.37.500.00

TOTAL 1,62.697.03 3,96,970.60



As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Interest on Loans

85,084.48

As at 31-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

MD & Kev-Managerial

9,587.81 7,177.96

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
I AUOII tees 250.00 r 00.00
2. Newspaper Publications 406.35 395.01
3. Bank Charses 26.27 288.72
4. Director Sitting Fees 15.50
5. Printing & Stationerv 1,123.43 1,008.64
6. rosrage & stamp l.l 80.87 r.045.41
7. Professional Tax 25.00 25.00
8. Listins Fees 4,130.00 944.00
9. Office Expenses 41.81 517.69
10. Filins Fess 3.988.12 71.00ll Legal & Professional Fees 1,619.40 2,276.54
12. Sundry Balance Written Off 200.00
13. Processing Fees 643.10
14. Registrar Fees t4t.60
15. Depository Charges 1,522.20
16. Interest Paid (Self Asst. Tax) 314.18
t7. Annual Maintenance Charses 67.11
18. Membership & Subscriotion t77.70

TOTAL 15.657.14 6,887.51



15. Payment to Auditors (Including Interim Audit Fees):

16. Related Partv Disclosures:

A' a) Name of the related party andnature of relationship where Control exists.

b) Radhashree Roadsters private Limited

B. The following transactions were carried out
in ordinary course of business.

Subsidiary Company

during the period with the related parties

l) Loan Given
2)Loan Accepted

Loan Repaid
3) Interest paid
4) Interest received

from:-

Other related Parties

9,45,462.54
Nil
Nil
Nil

97,612.57

i.v
,' I

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
Statutory Audit Fees
Secretarial Audit Fees
Internal Audit Fees

Name of Related parties Description of Relationshi
Director (KMP). promoter

Shri Shashi Kumar Key Managerial Personnel (CFO
Shri Ravi Todi 5"y Managerial p".sonnel - 

lcompany

Vinal Investments Limited
in which MD(KMp) wife
hold98.57%o Shares

Company in which KMp / R.tati*, otftvtp
can exercise significant influence

Shri Anurag Daga (Son of
Shri Shreegopal Daga &

Relatives of KMP and Director

Smt. Vatsala Daga
(Daughter-in-law of
Shreegopal Daga &.

Relatives of KMP and Director



r)
2)

Daga Co.

Vinal Investments Ltd.

c' The following represents the transactions between the companies during theperiod ended 3l,t March. 2022.

D. Non-Executive Director (Sitting Fees)

1. Smt. VatsalaDaga

2. SriAnurag Daga

3. Sri Shiv Mani Ojha

4. SriRishiKapoor

5. Amit Lal

: Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

17. Deferred Tax Liabilities as per AS J2has not been provided during the year.

18' Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts and not provided for Demands
of Income Tax for Assessment Year l9S4-85 to Assessment year 19g7-gg, as appeals

against the assessment orders are pending Rs. 90,90,1 49/- beforethe Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals).

The nature of transactions with KMp is mentioned below:

Nature of
Transaction

Key Managerial personn.t (ftr4p)

Sri
Shreegopal
Daga,
Managing
Director

Sri Ravi
Todi,
Company
Secretary

Sri Shashi
Kumar,
CFO

4.40.000.00 2.84.78r.00

1'(f(OLrgrA_7lg



19' nce sheet of a Non Banking Financiar company as onterms of paragraph 13 of a Non Banking Financial (NonHolding) companies prudentiar Normsiil;*" Bank)

Rs . in hundred
Particulars

Loans and adva
Inclusive of inte
Paid:
(a) Debentures : Secured

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans (unsecured)

Amount I Aro*t
Out- | overdue

NIL I urNrL I Nrr_NIL I unNIL I t rrr_NrL I Nrr_
NIL I NN

Amount outstandi
Break-up of Loans and Advan"e, t"ctudirrg bttts

of Provisions I1,10.811.20
Break up of Leased Assets 

"nd 
stock on hi.e und

hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP
activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease







20. Details of Benami property held

lhecgmpany does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act, r ggs (45 or ilas; and rures made thereunder.

21. Wilful Defaulter

The company had never been decoded defaulter by any bank or financial Institution orother lender or any of the Regulators.

22. Relationship with Stuck off Companies

The company has not any relationship with Stuck off companies.

23. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of companies (Roc)

There is no any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with RoC beyond thestatutory period.

24. Compliance with number of layer of companies

The Company has complied
section 2 of the Act read with (87) of
The company have r (one) Su s' 2ol7 '

25.Utilization of Share premium

The Company has utilized Share Premium amounting Rs. 2,37,50,000.00 for issue of30,37,5001-Bonus Shares during the year.

26. Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions

There are no borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions during the year.

27. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has not covered under section
applicable to the Company.

28. Undisclosed Income

135 of the Companies Act. The CSR is not

The company do not have any unrecorded transaction in
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
Income Tax Act. 1961.

the books of accounts that has
in the tax assessment under the

f 
f 
r(oLKAIA-7



29. Ratio

a.

b.

c.

d.

Capital to Risk Weighted Assets = 0.98

Tier I CRAR:0.98
Tier II CRAR = 0
Liquidity Coverage Ratio = 0

30. Earnine per Share AS - 20

No. ofEquity Shares

Nominal value per Equity Share (Rs.)

Eamings after Taxes

EPS (Rs.)

1,01,00,000
10

49,57,643
0.49

31. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped - arranged wherever necessary.

In terms of our report of even date attached'
For and on behalf of

r: r:r i,ii iilli ltil j.r .rilli.i'li-li,ail-ES
f-) irarl+l *tj lr'i:icu I liil i tt*

Managing Director
Name: ShreegoPal Daga

DIN: 0397379

tijjffiFii?'g',,-itiffij
Place: Kolkata
Date:30th May,2022

i?,?r sr*y For Sw

Di
N (nuragDaga

239623DIN:

For Swati Projects Limited

Name: Rishi KaPoor
DIN:08422654

Independent Director
Name: AmitLal
DIN:09469579

:]'i9'j 4'iE

a\-;
V.t. s-eltD



M MODI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

H.0 : the Meridian, E-2l5 Gp gtoct, 4th Ftoor. Sec

Independent Auditors, Report

To
The Members of M/s. Swati projects Limited

Report on the Audit of the consoridated Financiar statements

Opinion

ying consolidated financiai st
its Subsidiaries (the Compan

ich comprise the Consolidated

consoridatedStatem.ent"rch;;::tt;ffi"i":"J:i:ffiT*'tr
year then ended' and notes to thJ consolidated financ-iJriiLn,,"ntr, including a summary of thesignificant accounting policies and other explanatory inroi,nutio, (hereinafteirefe'ed to as ,,theconsolidated financial statements,,).

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and accordilq to the explanations given to us,the aforesaid Statement include the resuris of the folrowing entities:

Name of Entity Relationship with the Holding

Radhashree Roadffi

B.o. : 1.1.4113, Amritpuri, Gali No -13, Garhi,East of Kailash, New Delhi _ 110065 M :9425g11241Kochar Panchsheel, Block-1 Flat - w9, 129, crH no"o, nn,oaitur, chennai- 60009g. M: 98g4855214



Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Evaluation of tax positions

The kev audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Group operations in India are subject to
periodic challenges by local tax authorities on

a range of tax matters arising in the normal
course of business including direct tax and

transfer pricing matters.

Estimating the income tax expenses also

requires the Group to determine the

probability of tax authorities accepting a

particular tax treatment for potential tax
exposures. These involve significant
judgement by the Group to determine the
possible outcome of the tax litigations and

potential tax exposures, consequently having
an impact on related accounting" and

disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

Our audit procedures on taxation include the

following:
o Obtained an understanding of key tax

litigations and potential tax exposures.
o Evaluated the design, implementation

and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls relating to the Group
assessment of the possible outcome of
tax litigations, potential tax exposures

and related disclosures in . the

consolidated financial statements.
o The audit team, along with our internal

tax experts:
4 .Read and analyzed select k"Y

correspondences and consultations

'carried out by the Group including with
external tax experts for key tax
litigations and potential tax bxposures.

+ lnquired with the Group and external tax
experts to evaluate key assumptions and

grounds of appeal considered by the

Group in estimating the current tax
balances.

O Evaluated the status of the recent tax

assessments/inquiries, results of
previous tax assessments, legal

precedence/judicial rullngs and changes

in tax environment. This is performed to
assess and challenge the Group estimate

.of the possible outcome of key tax



.litigations and potential tax exposures.
Assessed and tested the adequacy and

accuracy of the presentation and

disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Group Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Group annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and

we do not express any form of assurancd conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary

actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Group management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,'('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss

and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian

Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

-uint.nun.e of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

); {,



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

"on.".n 
basis of u".ornting

unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or havE
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ubo* whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs witt always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these .onrolidut.d financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design, and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit''evidence that is sufficienl. and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting.from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override oIinternal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, ra,hether a material uncertainty
exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude Jhat a material uncertainty exists, we.have
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our



auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

4 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,

individuatly or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in

waluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements

in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ettrical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that are of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when' in

exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication'

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by Section 143(3) of"the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit'

j. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Group ro fur as ii appears from our examination of those books.

k. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes of Equity and the

Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.



m.

n.

l. ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under S'ection 133 of the Act.

.,., t

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as
on March 31,2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31,2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure A'. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the be'st of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors during the year. is in
accordanbe with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
US:

The Group did not have any pending litigations which may have an impact on
the financial position of the Company in its standalone financial statement. 

.

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) The Group is not required to transfer ariy amount to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund.

p.

(i)

(i i)

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th May,2022

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Charlered Accountants

FRN:3l914lE

Purlner



Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,
section of our report to the members of M/s. Swati Projects Limited of even date)

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls Over Finanbial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act,2013 ('the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of M/s. SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED ('the Company') as of March 31,2022
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and
for the year ended on that da:te.

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 3l March, 2022, based on the intemal financial controls with referenie to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Group considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
"Guidance Note").

The Group management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and

maintaining internal financial controls based on the criteria established by the Group considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group internal financial controls with reference

to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute 
'of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal



financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about thd adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness ofintetnal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Group internal financial controls with reference to consolidated

financial statements.

Meaning of Internal tr'inancial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A Group internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of consolidated financial itatements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Grouil internal control with reference to

consolidated financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the

Group; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group assets that could have a material effect

on the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control



with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to consolidated financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 37,2022, based on the
internal control with reference to consolidated financibl statements criteria established by the
Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements issued bv
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30m May,2022

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accounlants

(Membership No. 054366)

UDIN: r >.o (? ?ttNovH(kt$

FRN:319141E



SWATI PROJECTS LIMI]TED
COSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH,2OL2

(Rs. n

Particulars Note
No.

Figures ars at the end
of currrenLt reportimg
neriod (11.03.2022,\

Figures as at the endL

ofprevious reporting;

neriod (31.03.2021)
ASSETS

1. Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Loans
(c) Investments
(d) Other Financial assets (to be specified)

2. Non-Financial Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

3

4

5

6

7

3,55 8.56

1 1,1 0,81 1 .20

255.00
1? 415 0?

rt,796.92

t,022.55

8,90,36r.23

255.00

30,258.95

TOTAL ASSETS 11,58,856,,71 9,2L,89l.-,lit

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
l. Financial Liabilities

2. Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Defened Tax Liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-financial liabilities

3. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

6

9

L0

11

12

18,040,78

13.27

77,255.58

10,10,000.00

r,13,547.O8

17,1t43.86

13.27

920.00

s,06,2s0.00

3,96,870.60

1IOTAL LTABILITIES AND EQUITY 11,58,855,71 9,21.,89-,1 ;,l',:l

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date attached.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30thr May,2022

For and on beharlf of

For Swati Proiects Limited

Managing Director

Name: Shreegopal Daga

DIN: 0397379

r Limited

)r

Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654
u Dr\l: 2)-os;q3({ fi.dDVH g k{fg

For Swati Projects L,imited

t\- |

lndependent Diiector
Nanre: Amit Lal

DIN: 09469579

For Swati Projects t,imited

Name: Shashi Kumar

t Limited

'A,,'t-te=>=-
Anurag Daga

N: 05239623



accompsnylng

SWATI PROJECTS TIMITED

For snd on behalfof

Limited

I
Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

For Swati Projmts Limited

/(\A.
Krrl/r loclr

Company Swretary
Name: Ravi Todi

(Rs. In hundredl

Independeni Director

Name: Amit Lal
DIN: 09469579

For Swati Projects Limited

i ta! il l:rt (

rly't,- ; - r, 1..: i,, 4 i r: l'.1 r.1 ; -il 1 z-! i-1)1:)i
Place: Kolkata '

u 6 A{vovHqq{r)

)'tntvb"*
ChiefFinmcial Officer
Name: Shashi Kumar

CONSOLIDATf,D STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3IST MARCH,2022

l,a rticu la ni
Note

No.

Revenue from Operations
(i) Interest Income
(ii) Sale of Services

(I) Total Revenue from Operations
(II) Other Income (to be specified)
(III) Total Income (I+ID

Expenses
(i) Emptoye Bmefits Expenses
(ii) Depr@iation, amortization and impaimmt
(iii) Otber *pmses (to be sp*ified)
(lV) Tofal Expemes (I\)

(V) Profit i (Loss) before *coptioml iterro and tax (lll-lV)
(VI) Exceptional itms
iVIl) Profit / (Loss) before tax (V-VI)

iVIII) Tax Expmses:

Cumt Tax

Defened Tax

ilX) Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations
.VII-VIIN

iX) Profit / (Loss) from disconlinued operations

iXI) Tax Expenses ofdiscontinued operations
iXII) Profit (Loss) from discontinued operations after tax
,X-XD

lXtrI) Profit / (Loss) for the period (D(+X[)

:Xry) Other Comprehensive Income

.XV) Total Comprehensive Income for the period
:Xm+Xry) (Comprising Profit / (Loss) and other
Comprehensive Income for the period)

'XVI) Earnings per equity share (for continuing
)perations)

3asic (Rs.)

)iluted (Rs )
XVII) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
)perations)
lasic (Rs )
)iluted (Rs.)

XVIII) Earnings per equity share (for continuing
liscontinued operations)
3asic (Rs )
)iluted (Rs )

13

t4

_t)

l6

l7

92,982.16

10,648.47

1,03,630.63

89s
1,03,639.58

I 2,708.81

3,406.06

,? too r<
39,405.t2

64,234,46

64,234,46

1 8,040 78

18,040.78

46,193.68

46,193.68

46,193.68

0.46
0.46

0.46
0.46

85,084.48

8s,084.48

8s,084.48

7,297 96

6,887 5 I
14,18s.47

70,899,01

70,899.01

t7,843 86

17,843.86

,53,055,15

53,055,15

53,0s5.15

105
105

1,05

t05

For Swati Proiects Limited



M/S. SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

COSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Rs. In hundred)

PARTICULARS As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.202'l

\) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

tlet Profit Before Tax & Extraordinary ltems

\diustments For:-
Interest (Net)
Depreciation

)perating Profit before Working Capital Changes
\diustments For :-

Changes in other payables
Changes in Reserve & Surplus (Net)

:ash Generated from Operations

-ess:- Tax Paid/Adj ustments

tlet Cash from Operating Activities

r) @!ow-E&l!!jNvEsrl NG Acrlvlrl Es
-ong Term Loan Given
)ther Financial Assets
Share Capital Increase
Share Premium
nvestments in Shares (Subsidiary Co )
)lant, Property & Equipment
nterest Received

t{et Cash from Investing Activities

3) CASH FLOW FROM FTNANCTNG ACTTVTTTES

lnterest Paid

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Increse/Decrease in Cash & Gash Equivalants
iA+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalants at the beginning of the year

Cash & Cash Equivalants at the end of the year

64,234 46

(92,667.98)
3,406.06

70,899.01

(85,084.48

(25,027 46

1A AAF EA

617.32

(14,185.47

(507 37

(8,074.561

1 7,843 86

(14,692.84

14,686.48

Q5,918.41 (29.379.3i

(2,20,449 97,
(2,176 08,

2,Cro,000 00
20,000.00

(50,000.00,
(11,796.92:
92,982.16

(47,2O3 14',,

(8,77157"

85,084.48

28,559.1 I 29,'t09.77

(314 18

(314.18

2,326 59

1,231.97

(269 55

1,292 10

3.558.56 1.022.55

]ash & Cash Equivalants include:
)ash in Hand
A/ith Scheduled Banks in - Current Accounts

1,781 46
1,777 .10

32 10

990.45

3.558 56 1.022.55

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For and on behalfof

For Swati Projects Limited

--.-lhvi{'., ..1. ManagingDirector

Limited

r

Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

:,.i -1.']. 
Name: Shreegopal Daga

,, ,...4 DrN: 0i97379
': '.]..-#,...

il/:i: l-,'il.' :i-::.r;t ;ir: ij5r:l ijiit
Place: Kolkata
Date:30th May,2022

For Swati Projects limited

Q.*tri tu.l'
Company Secretary

For Swati Projects Limited

ftu
Independent Director
Name: Amit Lal
DIN: 09469579

For Swati Projects Litnited
,-l)fa'tr p\*-*

Chief Financial Officer
Name: Shashi Kumar

urag Daga

\

Lr vrv: L1-o9 ll4wovHqt{6rY

Name: Ravi Todi

KOLKATA-1



M/S. SWATI PROJECTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

A. Equity Share C$pital

1. Current reporting period

2. Provious reporting period

For theyear ended on 3lst March, 2!p2

Forand on behalfof

imited

Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN: 08422654

Fgr Swati Projects Limited

(\'ri 1rd'
Cqmpany Seeretary
Name: Ravi Todi

Name:

DIN;

Chiof
Name:

For Swati hojects Limited

a)
Managing Direotor
Npme: Shreegopal Daga
DIN: 0397379



J

B

h

x.

*
I
q
I

I

dCe
zEE
r.Ed<,qE

Xr*
::F

€5X
!,.6
EElsza

E.lu:'!xR!d
Ean
$HzEZA



s

r^d
P

E
2

d

fl
d

t
E

v



M/S. SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
KOLKATA

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF TIIE FINA]iICIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH.2OZ2

1. COMPANY INFORMATION
Swati Projects Limited, incorporated in India, is a public limited company. The
Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBITC') engaged in Investments in
Shares & Securities and Inter-Corporute & Personal Loan. The Company is not a
systematically important Company as defined in paragraph 2(1) (xix) of the Non-
Banking Financial (Non-Deposits Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. The Company has received a Certificate
bearing no. 8.05.02353 from Reserve Bank of India under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the
Calcutta Stock Exchange ('CSE') and Metropolitan Stock Exchange ('MSED in India.
The Company's registered office is at 1688, Jamunalal Bajaj Street, Kolkata-700007,
West Bengal,India.

List of Subsidiaries with percentage holdine

Subsidiaries Country of
Incorporation

% of holding

3t-03-2022 3t-03-2021
Radhashree
Roadsters Pvt. Ltd.

lndia r00

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

a.

Consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act., 2013 ("the Act"), in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions
of the Act. Any application guidance/clarifications/directions issued by RBI or
other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/applicable.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR
or Rs.') which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are

rounded-off to the nearest hundred. unless otherwise indicated.

)



c. Revenue Recognition

Refer the policy on revenue recognition for discussion on judgements and
estimates on revenue.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated frnancial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations at
the end of reporting period. These estimates are based upon management's
best knowledge of current events and actions. The actual results could differ
from these estimates. Any revision to accountins estimates is recosnized
prospectively.

e. Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities
of the Company are segregated. Cash flows in foreign currencies are

accounted at the actual rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Prope4v. Plant & Equipments

The respective Management reviews the usefirl life of property, plant and

equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expenses in future periods.

Depreciation

Depreciation provides as per Companies Act,2013

Revenue Recognition

Income from investments & other sources are accounted on accrual basis.

Investments

Investments are stated at cost. All investments are long-term investments. The

value of some of them has been eroded due to Market conditions for which no

provision has been made in the nt.

d.

o

h.



j. ContingentLiabilities

There are no so-called contingent liabilities.

k. Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group has not made during the current financial year arry foreign currency
transactions.

l. The Holding Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under
Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has
recognized provision for Income Tax for the year ended 31't March ,2022.

COVID-l9 has caused significant disruptions to businesses across India. The
management has considered the possible effects, if any, that may impact on
the business. In making the assumptions and estimates relating to the
uncertainties as at the balance sheet date in relation to the recoverable
amounts, the management has considered subsequent events, intemal and
external information and evaluated economic conditions prevailing as at the
date of approval of these financial statements. The management expects no
impairment on the operations. The management will continue to closely
monitor any changes to future economic conditions and assess its impact on
the operations.

3. Cash & cash equivalents:

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

a. Cash-in-hand t.78t.46 32.10

b. Balance with Schedule Banks in
Current Account

1,777.10 990.4s

TOTAL 3,558.56 1,022.55



4. Loan:

Current Year 31.03 .2022

sr.
No.

Particulars Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Throu
gh
Other
Comp
rehen
sice
Incom
e

Throug
h Profit
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

(1) (2) (3) G) (5:2+3+4\ (6:l+5)
1. Loans

Unsecured,
considered
soods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

9,37,181.67 9,37,r81.67

b. Vinal
Investments
Limited

8,280.87 8,280.87

c. Piyush
Securities
Pvt. Ltd.

34,912.91 34,912.97

d. Radhashree
Apartments
P\.t. Ltd.

96,447.05 96,447.05

e. Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

33,988.64 33.988.64

TOTAL 11.10,811.20 11.10.811.20

w



Previous Year 31.03.2021

sl.
No.

Particulars Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Throug
h Other
Compr
ehensic
e

Income

Through
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

(7\ (8) (9) fl0) 111:g+9+10) (12:7+Il\
1. Loans

Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

8.82.019.56 8.82.019.56

b. Vinal
Investments
Limited

8,341.67 8,341.67

c. Piyush
Securities
Pvt. Ltd.

d. Radhashree

Apartments
P\.t. Ltd.

e. Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

TOTAL 8.9036r.23 8.90.361.23



5. Investments:

SI

N
o.

Current Year
31.03.2022

Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars Throu
gh
Other
Comp
rehen
sice
Inco
me

Throug
h Profit
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fan
value
throu
gh
profit
or
loss

1. Equity Instruments:

a. Ouoted:
100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

22.00 22.00

100 Equity Shares of
IWs. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

15.00 15.00

Unouoted:
1,000 Equity Shares of
M/s. Bihar Sponge Iron
Limited (Face Value Rs.
l0)

218.00 218.00

TOTAL 2s5.00 255.00



SI

N
o.

Previous Year
31.03.2021

Amortised
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars Throu
gh

Other
Comp
rehens
lce
lncom

Through
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

1. Equitv Instruments:

a. Ouoted:
100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

22.00 22.00

100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

15.00 r5.00

Unquoted:
1,000 Equity Shares of
M/s. Bihar Sponge Iron
Limited (Face Value Rs.
10)

218.00 218.00

TOTAL 2ss.00 255.00

6. Other Financial Assets:

As ^t 3l-12-
202r

As at 3l-03-2021

Others: Unsecured. Considered

15.510.40Income Tax Deducted at Sources

Advance Income Tax

Income Tax Refund 5.42r.53

Advance Asainst Travelli
Core Svsvtem
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of
India (MSEI
The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited
Advance Tax, TDS & TCS

Goods & Service Tax



7. Propertv, Plant and Equipment:

8. Current Tax Liabilities:

9. Deferred Tax Liabilities:

10. Other Non-Financial Liabilities:

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the period t5.202.98
Less: Deoreciation 3.406.06

TOTAL 1r.796.92

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-06-2021

a. Provision for Taxation 18,040.78 17.843.86

TOTAL 18,040.78 17,843.86

SL
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

a. Deferred Tax Liabilities 13.27 t3.27

TOTAL 13.27 13.27

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

a. Audit Fess Payable 550.00 100.00

b. Ashwani Gupta & Co. 100.00 r00.00

c. Bonus Pavable 120.00 120.00

d. Legal & Professional Fees

Pavable

800.00 600.00

e. Director Remuneration PaYable 8,750.19

o P. D. Randar & Co. 574.00

h. TDS Pavable 0.07

Liabilitv for Expenses 9.04

Security Deposit for bike 6.352.28

TOTAL 17,255.58 920.00



11. (i) Equity Share Canital:

sl.
No.

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021

1. AUTHORIZBD CAPITAL
55,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each

5.50.000.00 5,50,000.00

50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each

5,00,000.00

TOTAL 10.50.000.00 5,50,000.00
) ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED & PAID

_UP CAPITAL
33,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each, Fully Paid-up

3,37,500.00 3,37,500.00

16,87,500 Bonus Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each, Fully Paid-up

r.68.750.00 1.68.750.00

30,37,500 Bonus Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each. Fullv Paid-uo

3.03.7s0.00

20,00,000 (Preferential Issue)
Equity Shares of Rs. l0/- each,

Fullv Paid-uo

2.00.000.00

TOTAL 10.10.000.00 5.06.250.00

(ii) Terms / Riehts attached with Equitv Shares:
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-
per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(iii) Reconciliation of Equitv Shares (Issued. Subscribed & Paid-up):

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

(Amount in (Units in (Amount in

5,06,25,000 s0.62.500 5,06,25,000Number of shares

outstanding as at the
beginning of the financial

Add: Increase in number
of shares durins the year

3,03,75,000
- Preferential Issue

Less: Reduction in number
of shares durins the vear

10,10,00,000 5,06,25,000Number of shares

outstanding as at the end of
financial year (March 3l)
or period ended

1,01,00,000

-*-/
?lKol

\



(iv)

(v) The Company was issued 16,87,500 Bonus Shares in preceding previous financial
year 2019-2020 and 30,37,500 Bonus Shares issued during the period and 20,00,000
Preferential Issues (FY 2021-2022). The Company has not bought back shares during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(vi) Shareholding of Promoters:

Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
No.
Shares

of
held

oof
Iloldins

No. of
Shares held

o/o of
Holdine

Promoter's Holding
Sudha Dasa 9.40.200 9.31% 5.87.625 It.6t%
Vatsala Dasa 5.82.720 5.77% 3,64,200 7.r9%
Non-Promoter's Holdins
Anurodh Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 6,00,000 5.94% 3,75,000 7.4t%
Burnpur Power Private Limited 6,00,000 s.94% 3,75,000 7.4t%
Faithful Cloth Merchants Private
Limited

3,75,000 7.41%

Jaguar Infra Developers Private
Limited

3,75,000 7.4r%

Multifold Plastic Marketins Private
Limited

3,75,000 7.4t%

Original Fashion Traders Private
Limited

"3,75,000
7.41%o

Pears Mercantiles Private Limited 3,75,000 7.4r%
Shreyans Embroidery Machine
Private Limited

3,75,000 7.4t%

Wonderland Paper Suppliers Private
Limited

6,00,000 594% 3,75,000 7.4r%

Radhashree Finance Limited rs.00.000 14.85%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change
durine the vear

S.

No.
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total

shares

1. Shreesopal Dasa 64.200 0.63 0.16

2. Anurag Daga 3.600 0.04 0.00
a
J. Sudha Dasa 9,40,200 9.31 2.30
4. Vatsala Dasa 5.82.720 5.77 1.42

5. Shreeeopal Daea HUF 81.480 0.81 0.20

6. Vinal Investments
Limited

2,37,120 2.35 0.58

7. Ganpati Stocks Private
Limited

5,00,000 4.95 -4.9s

Total 24,09,320 23.86 -0.29



[3. Interest Income:

14. Sale ofServices:

15. Other Income:

3re(

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
Profit & Loss Account
Openine Balance 94.298.20 52.479.35

Less: Debit Balance of
Subsidiarv Co.

45,767.20

Add: Profit for the vear 46,193.68 53.055.15
Less: Transfer to Statutory
Reserve

9,238.74 10,61 1.03

Less: Bonus Shares Issue (5:3) 66.250.00

Less: Written off Non-current
Investments

625.27

Closins Balance 19,235.94 94.298.20

2 Statutory Reserve 74.3tt.t4 65.072.40

3. Share Premium
Openine Balance 2.37.500.00 2.37.500.00

Less: Bonus Shares Issue (5:3) 2.37.500.00

Add: Preferential Issues 20.000.00

Closins Balance 20.000.00 2.37.500.00

TOTAL 1.13,547.08 3.96.870.60

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

1 Interest on Loans 92.982.r6 85,084.48

TOTAL 92.982.16 85,084.48

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

I Sale of Services

a. Bike Fare Received t0.648.47

TOTAL 70.648.47

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3t-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021

I Interest on I. T. Refund 8.95

TOTAL E.9s



16. Employees Benefits Expenses:

17. Other Expenses:

18. Payment to Auditors (Including Interim Audit Fees):

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021

MD & Kev-Manaserial
Personnel
Salary 12.587.81 7.r77.96
Bonus 120.00 r20.00
Employees Contribution in ESI
& PPF

1.00

TOTAL 12,708.91 7,297.96

Sl. No. Particulars As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
I Audit Fees 300.00 100.00
2. Newspaper Publications 406.35 395.01
3. Bank Charses r46.10 288.72
4. Director Sittins Fees 15.50
5. Printinq & Stationerv 1,123.43 1.008.64
6. Postage & Stamp 1.180.87 t.045.41
7. Professional Tax 50.00 25.00
8. Listing Fees 4.130.00 944.00
9. Office Expenses r.308.25 5r7.69
10. Filins Fess 4.819.79 71.00
1l Leeal & Professional Fees r.619.40 2.276.54
12. Sundrv Balance Written Off 240.03 200.00
13. Interest Paid 314.18
14. Commission 226.49
15. Repair and Maintenance 339.13
16. General Expenses 102.25
17. Insurance Premium Inc GST 587.08
18. Late Fees on GST 2.00
I9 Motor Car Exoenses 2.321.69
20. Trade License 21.s0
2l Sales Promotion 1.s00.00
22. Processins Fees 643.r0
23. Resistrar Fees r4t.60
24. Deoositorv Charses t.522.20
25. Annual Maintenance Charses 67.11

26. Membership & Subscription 177.70

TOTAL 23,290.25 6,887.51

As at 3l-03-2022 As at 3l-03-2021
Audit Fees

Secretarial Audit Fees

Intemal Audit Fees



Sl. No. Name of Related Parties Description of Relationships
I Shri Shreeeopal Dasa Manasins Director (KMP). Promoter
2. Shri Shashi Kumar Key Manaserial Personnel (CFO)
i. Shri Ravi Todi Key Managerial Personnel (Company

Secretary)
4 Vinal Investments Limited

in which MD(KMP) wife
hold 98.57o4 Shares

Company in which KMP / Relatives of KMP
can exercise sisnificant influence

5 Shri Anurag Daga (Son of
Shd Shreegopal Daga,
Promoter & Director)

Relatives of KMP

6 Smt. Vatsala Daga
(Daughter-in-law of
Shreegopal Daga, Promoter
& Director)

Relatives of KMP

19. Related Partv Disclosures:

A. a) Name of the related parly and nature of relationship where Control exists.

b) Radhashree Roadsters Private Limited Subsidiary Company
1. Director Remuneration Paid to Sri Raghav Randar - Rs. 3,00,000/-

p.a.

B. The following transactions were canied out during the period with the related

parties in ordinary course of business.

Controlling Persons Subsidiarv Co. Other related Parties

1) Loan Given
2)Loan Accepted

Nit
Loan Repaid

3) Interest paid
4) Interest received

from:-
1) Daga Co.

9,45,462.54

Nil
Nil

87,612.57

D Vinal Investments Ltd.



c. The following represents the transactions between the companies during
the period ended 3lrt March,2022.

The nature of transactions with KMp is mentioned below:

D. Non-Executive Director (Sitting Fees)

1. Smt. Vatsala Daga

Sri Anurag Daga

Sri Shiv Mani Ojha

Sri fushi Kapoor

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

2.

a
J.

4.

20. Defened Tax Liabilities as per AS J2 has not been provided during the year.

21. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts and not provided for
Demands of Income Tax for Assessment Year 1984-85 to Assessment Year 1987-88,
as appeals against the assessment orders are pending Rs. g0,g0,I4g| before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

22. Schedule to the Balance sheet of a Non Banking Financial Company as on
31.12.2021required in terms of paragraph 13 of a Non Banking Financial (Non
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)
Directions.2007.

in thousands

Nature of
Transaction

Key Managerial Personnel (KMp)

Sri
Shreegopal
Daga,
Managing
Director

Sri Ravi
Todi,
Company
Secretary

Sri Shashi
Kumar,
CFO

4.40.000.00 2,84,791.00

Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
Paid:
(a) Debentures : Secured

: Unsecured
other than falline within t

Amount
Out-

Amount
overdue

NIL
NIL



meaning of public deposits)
(b) Defened Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans (unsecured)

NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables lother than those included in (4)
belowl:
(a) Secured
b) Unsecured (Net of Provisions

NIL
I 1,10,81 1 .20

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP
activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards
EL/HP activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been

repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-up of Investments:
Current investments:
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment Securities
(v) Other (please speciff)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual tunds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please speciff)

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

",{KOLKATA-7
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Lonq Term investment:
1. Ouoted:
(D Share: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Other (please specifi)
2. Unquoted:
(D Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Investment In Partnership Firm

37.00
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
218.00
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased
stock-on-hire and loans and advances:

Amount net of orovisrons

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group 8,280.87

(c) Other related parties 9,37,181.67 9,37,181.67

r.6s.348.662. Other than related parties 1,65,348.66

1 1.10.81 1 .20 1 1.10.81 I .20

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in
shares and securities (both ouoted and

Market Value /
Break up or I'air
value orNAV

Book Value (Net of
Provisions)

1. Related Parties
a) Subsidiaries

c) Other related oarties
2. Other than related



(i)
Particulars Amount
Gross Non-Bankins Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

1l Net Non-Performins Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL

(7) Other information

*Investments in those unquoted companies (Balance sheet as at 3ls March, 2022has not
been received) have been shown at their book values.

23. Details of Benami Property held

The Company does not hold any benami properfy under the Benami 'Iransactions
(Prohibition) Act, 198s (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

24. Wilful Defaulter

The Company had never been decoded defaulter by any bank or financial Institution
or other lender or any of the Regulators.

25. Relationship with Stuck offCompanies

The company has not any relationship with Stuck off companies.

26. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There is no any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

27. Compliance with number of layer of companies

I'he Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause (S7) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017. The Company have 1 (one) Subsidiary i.e., Radhashree Roadsters private
Limited.

2S.Utiluation of Share Premium

The Company has utilized Share Premium amounting Rs. 2,37,50,000.00 for issue of
30,37,5001-Bonus Shares during the year.

29. Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions

There are no borrowings from Banks or Financial I ions during the year. KOLKATA-7



30. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has not covered under section
not applicable to the Company.

135 of the Companies Act. The CSR is

31. Undisclosed Income

The company do not have any unrecorded transaction in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

32. Ratio

a.

b.

c.

d.

Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: 0.98

TieTICRAR=0.98

Tier II CRAR:0

Liquidity Coverage Ratio = 0

33. Earnine per Share AS - 20

No. of Equity Shares

Nominal value per Equity Share (Rs.)

Earnings after Taxes

EPS (Rs.)

1,01,00,000

10

46,r9,369

0.46

34. . Figures for the previous year have been regroup ed - ananged wherever necessary.



In terms of our report of even date attached.
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For and on behalf of
For Swati Proiects Limited

Managing Director
Name: Shreegopal Daga
DIN:0397379

U Dt N,, r1..o Stt Ltb A{Vovl{4trtfy

Place: Kolkata
Date:30th May,2022

For Swati Projects Limited

Independent Director
Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN: 08422654

For Swati Projects Limited

Nr-l
Independent Director
Name: Amit Lal
DIN:09469579

ame: Anurag Daga
DIN:05239623


